
Board of Public Utilities 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, March 31, 2014 
4:00 p.m., DPW Conference Room, 1199 8th Avenue 
 

                                         City of South Haven 

 

 
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
4. Acceptance of Minutes for the Record – February 21, 2014 Special Meeting 
 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REPORTS 
 
6. Cost of Energy from Indiana-Michigan Power Company (AEP) 

A. 2013 Billings – All Charges 
B. 2012 Billings – All Charges 
 

7. Financial Reports 
A. Water Fund CuFt Comparisons 
B. Water Fund Financial Statement 
C. Sewer Fund Financial Statement 
D. Electric Fund KWH Comparisons 
E. Electric Fund Financial Statement 

 
8. Indian Grove Infrastructure Project 

A. No Report 
 
9. Unresolved Issues Report 
 
10. GRP Engineering – 2013-14 Projects 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
11. Board will be requested to approve award of four Veterans Boulevard Underground 

Project bids. 
 
12. Board will be requested to approve award of the Core City Secondary Upgrades – 

Phase 1 bids. 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 1 of 102



 

South Haven Department of Public Works is Barrier-free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon 
seven (7) days notice to the South Haven City Clerk. Individuals with disabilities requiring services should contact the 
City Clerk by writing or calling South Haven City Hall at (269) 637-0750. 

 
13. Board will be requested to approve a recommendation to City Council to approve the 

Amendment to the Cost-Based Formula Rate Agreement for Full Requirements 
Electric Service with Indiana Michigan Power Company. 

 
14. Next meeting is scheduled for Monday, April 28, 2014 at 4:00 pm in the DPW 

Conference Room, 1199 8th Avenue, South Haven, Michigan. 
 
15. Director’s Comments 
 
16. Board Member Comments 
 
17. Adjourn 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Roger Huff, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 2 of 102



 

 

Board of Public Utilities 
 

 
Special Meeting Minutes 
 
Friday, February 21, 2014 
4:00 p.m., DPW Conference Room, 1199 8th Avenue 
 

                                         City of South Haven 

 

 
1. Call to Order by Stickland at 4:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Present: Burr, Overhiser (Ex-Officio), Stein (Ex-officio), Winkel, Stickland 
Absent:  Henry, Rose (Ex-Officio) 
 
Also present:  
 
 Paul VandenBosch, Projects Manager;  
 Wendy Hochstedler, Finance Department;  
 Larry Halberstadt, City Engineer;  
 Daniel A. Combos, PE, Senior Project Engineer, Abonmarche, Inc.  
 Christopher J. Cook, PE, President/CEO, Abonmarche, Inc. 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Burr, second by Winkel to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4. Acceptance of Minutes for the Record – January 27, 2014 
 

Motion by Burr, second by Winkel to accept the January 27, 2014 regular meeting minutes 
for the record with corrections. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

None at this time. 
 
REPORTS 
 
6. Cost of Energy from Indiana-Michigan Power Company (AEP) 

A. 2014 Billings – All Charges 
B. 2013 Billings – All Charges 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 3 of 102



 

       February 21, 2014 
       Page 2 
       Board of Public Utilities 
       Special Meeting Minutes 
       DRAFT 
 

 
Discussion ensued regarding the cost of energy jumping, which, according to American 
Electric Power (AEP), was due to consolidation with another subsidiary. 
 

7. Financial Reports 
 
A. Water Fund CuFt Comparisons 
B. Water Fund Financial Statement 
C. Sewer Fund Financial Statement 
D. Electric Fund KWH Comparisons 
E. Electric Fund Financial Statement 

 
Hochstedler noted that, regarding the Rolling Twelve (12) Month Reports, the percentage 
might be off in January since the bills have been estimated due to the weather. The 
percentage is lower than in 2012 and 2013. Same with the Rolling Water, last year and 2012 
were higher. Again, once reading meters resumes, these will probably true up.  
 
Stickland, Stein and Huff discussed the water main breaks and whether the amount of water 
going through the treatment plant being higher than ever before is based on some kind of 
break. Huff reported that nothing has been discovered up to this point. 

 
8. Indian Grove Infrastructure Project 
 

Daniel A. Dombos, PE, Senior Project Engineer updated the board on the project’s 
progress. 
 
There was discussion of the 76th Street lift station, which is located in South Haven 
Township and up to this point Abonmarche has not looked at anything outside the city limits. 
Halberstadt explained that outflow is getting pumped to the Peterson drain interceptor, there 
is a large head on those pumps and a lot of small force main. Halberstadt said that lift 
station is a continual maintenance problem for city staff.  
 
Christopher J. Cook, President/CEO, Abonmarche, Inc. said this project was focused on in-
city improvements. Ross Stein informed that it is his understanding that nothing can be done 
at 76th until Indian Grove is fixed. Halberstadt pointed out that the city will have to be in 
conversation with the (South Haven) township on funding.  
 
Phase 1B, which includes Center Street Sewer separation (issues at Center and Lyon 
Streets as well as Center & South Haven Streets). The Peterson Ravine Sewer saw the 
chief amount of the inflow coming. Some rehabilitation can be done on manhole structures 
and a cleanout cap could be handled fairly easily. Once those are complete the capacity 
should improve at the Main Pump Station.  
 
Discussion ensued about these projects include a new pump station on the plant property. It 
was noted that there will a large, deep wet well; Burr asked about the location of the well 
and whether this wet well is shown on the Black River Park Master Plan. Halberstadt 
informed that the pipe (for the wet well) will have to go through Black River Park. Huff noted 
that the preliminary plan has taken into account that there will need to be cooperation 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 4 of 102



 

       February 21, 2014 
       Page 3 
       Board of Public Utilities 
       Special Meeting Minutes 
       DRAFT 
 

between the two projects. Dombos stated the final design has not been drawn and 
Halberstadt noted that there will be a lateral provided for the proposed new fish cleaning 
station.  
 
Cook explained that the latest on the SAW (Stormwater, Asset Management and 
Wastewater) Grant is that there is not much new; there were far more requests than there 
was money. Reassured that South Haven’s application was received and has been 
reviewed and has no issues. “Now it is a matter of the lottery, which is supposed to happen 
soon, and then we should have some idea whether we are going to be successful in Round 
One (1). March and May are when those awards will be announced. If we are not successful 
in Phase 1, we feel we will be in a future phase.” 
 
Phase III focuses on Inflow and Infiltration Removal. These are cost effective in comparison 
to other projects. Without addressing inflow, the existing Peterson Drain is incapable of 
handling the flows.  
 
A potential schedule was presented on the last page of the handout provided by Cook 
stated that they had anticipated that we would know earlier about the SAW grant awards. 
One of the assumptions in this schedule is that we get a SAW grant for the 1st project. It was 
noted that the SAW grant is for engineering while the S2 focuses on low interest loans for 
construction. 
 
There was discussion about the board attempting to coordinate those projects with the 
bridge project so as not to inconvenience everyone twice. However, the bridge is being rebid 
so no time frame is available yet. Halberstadt needed to work through the financing with 
Brian and Wendy if the city does not get a SAW grant.  

 
Overhiser asked about timing between SAW grant awarding and construction, which Burr 
noted 3 yrs.  

 
Discussion regarding schedule noted that there are no real surprises and plans include 
dove-tailing with other projects.  
 
Discussion regarding Engineering costs and maximizing the use of the SAW grant program 
funding.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding payback on the State Revolving Fund (SRF) loans; rate 
impact; and public hearing.  

 
9. Unresolved Issues Report 
 

Huff reviewed the updates on the unresolved issues. City Council’s Priority #4, adopted this 
past Monday night requires that all utility policies be reviewed. Halberstadt noted he 
understands it as a clean-up of the language. Burr explained that much of the issue is 
related to the billing side, such as procedures being used that have not been written, with an 
emphasis on billing policy.  

 
10. GRP Engineering – 2013-14 Projects 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 5 of 102



 

       February 21, 2014 
       Page 4 
       Board of Public Utilities 
       Special Meeting Minutes 
       DRAFT 
 

 
Huff noted that GRP Engineering updated their report”: 2nd Avenue project has started; the 
Veteran’s and transformer projects are all proceeding. Bid opening was today so that 
information will be here for the March meeting.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
11. Board will be requested to approve a…Wi-Fi project. 
 

Paul VandenBosch noted this is mainly a financial request but he can answer questions 
about the project. VandenBosch outlined the request as a combination of the marinas Wi-Fi 
system, which has been in place for several years but wanted to improve signal strength at 
the far ends, and a downtown Wi-Fi project. The conduit for fiber needed to be run; Secant 
recommended the city combine the two projects so only one management system would be 
required. This will allow people to identify SSIDs (Service Set Identifiers) on their phones, 
one for marina boaters (free service with some bandwidth limitations), city employees, and 
city guests. Most will be password protected; there will be only one (1) that is not password 
protected. The purpose for the Wi-Fi project is marketing; trying to encourage people to visit. 
This system will be up year round. The two (2) projects developed separately and then were 
merged so we have a cost for each of them. The request is for funding. Normally the 
marinas would pay for this themselves but the new marina building and dredging has made 
the fund balance rather low. VandenBosch said it is his understanding that the two projects 
will be two separate systems, and those two entities would pay back any funding provided 
by the Board.  

 
Stickland said this request is asking us to be their bank. Stickland does not like robbing the 
utility, but this is a loan, with money coming back to us from the Marina Fund and the 
Downtown Development Authority (DDA). “The other thing is, that like VandenBosch said, 
“apparently by the control of bandwidth, you could also make it available as a utility. There 
might be a business opportunity here that could be an Enterprise Fund that would fall in the 
realm of this board. Need to talk to Secant or someone to develop a revenue and cost 
stream, down the road. The focus today is whether we will approve loaning this project. 
Stickland said he feels the interest of one percent (1%) is a token that indicates intent to 
repay.”  
 
Motion by Winkel to recommend to city council to approve a resolution to advance Electric 
Utility funds of $271,000 at an interest rate of one percent (1%) to be paid back over a five 
year period beginning next year. Second by Burr.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
12. Board will be requested to approve award of three Phoenix Road Substation 

equipment bids. 
 

Huff noted these are equipment bids lumped together for the upcoming Phoenix Road 
Substation work. These are for circuit breakers, circuit switcher and regulators. A discussion 
ensued regarding the difference between switches and switchers. 
 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 6 of 102



 

       February 21, 2014 
       Page 5 
       Board of Public Utilities 
       Special Meeting Minutes 
       DRAFT 
 

Motion by Burr to recommend to City Council to award Phoenix Road Substation Equipment 
Bids as follows:  

 
A. Four (4) 12 kV circuit breakers to ABB in the amount of $75,060. 
B. One (1) 69kV transformer circuit switcher to Siemens Energy in the amount of $34,785. 
C. Six (6) regulators and base stands to GE in the amount of $89,166. 
 
Second by Winkel.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
13. Next meeting is scheduled for Monday, March 31, 2014 at 4:00 pm in the DPW 

Conference Room, 1199 8th Avenue, South Haven, Michigan. 
 
14. Director’s Comments 

 
Huff updated the board regarding frozen water lines; the city of Kalamazoo is making news 
because of frozen water lines. Huff stated that the city of South Haven has had forty-five 
(45) incidents; they have all been taken care of. All have been on the city’s side of the 
service line/meter. Halberstadt noted that the problem is within the city due to shallow water 
mains.  
 
Burr said he does not think a full-scale press release should be issued; just authorize staff to 
issue a credit based on usage. Stickland stated that staff should tell the  customer to run 
their water and the utility billing department will issue the customer a credit based on half of 
the water consumption of the previous year. Stickland suggested doing this on a case-by-
case basis as a staff procedure. Hochstedler said we could address this in our review of the 
policy. Halberstadt suggested if someone’s water freezes because it is in a crawl space or 
other unprotected area, the customer should be advised that the new meter must be re-
installed in a more protected place.  

 
15. Board Member Comments 
 

None 
 
16. Adjourn 
 

Motion by Winkel, second by Burr to adjourn at 5:17 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion Carried. 

 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 
 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 7 of 102



PJM Open Access Transmission Tariff

Date
KW

Demand

KVAR
Deman

d KVA
Power
Factor

KW
Demand

KVAR
Demand KWHRS

$ KW
Demand

$
KWHR

 $ Fuel
Charge

$ Fuel
Adjust

Actual
Fuel True-up

Sch 1A
$ KWHRS

$ Network RTO 
Start-up $ Other Credits

Total
PJM

Total
Cost

cts/
KWHR

Main 11,651 1,530 11,751 0.9915 11,651 1,530 6,719,607 $191,565.41 $64,645.31
Welder 371 312 485 0.7652 371 312 141,182 $6,098.34 $1,358.23

Phoenix 8,190 1,078 8,261 0.9915 8,190 1,078 4,543,059 $134,666.23 $43,706.04
Welder 9 22 24 0.3867 9 22 6,223 $149.62 $59.87
Feb-14 20,221 2,941 20,434 0.9896 20,221 2,941 11,410,071 $332,479.60 $109,769.45 $171,732.98 $19,759.96 ($46,438.54) $978.15 $83,726.98 $270.26 $11,967.30 ($1,743.34) $95,199.35 $682,502.80 5.982

Main 333 1,559 1,594 0.2091 12,263 1,559 7,522,565 $201,628.25 $72,370.09
Welder 12,263 300 12,267 0.9997 333 300 81,682 $5,480.12 $785.81

Phoenix 8,052 1,097 8,126 0.9909 8,052 1,097 4,995,844 $132,384.41 $48,062.02
Welder 25 40 47 0.5283 25 40 8,502 $406.12 $81.79
Jan-14 20,673 2,995 20,888 0.9897 20,673 2,995 12,608,593 $339,898.89 $121,299.71 $189,771.93 $53,301.57 $69,341.54 $1,080.90 $92,697.73 $299.11 $11,973.87 ($1,941.22) $104,110.39 $877,724.03 6.961

Year to Date 2013: 24,018,665 $1,560,227 6.496

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
Cost of Electric Energy from Indiana-Michigan Power Company (AEP)

2014
ACTUAL BILLING COST

AEP Electric Bill-All Charges 2014.xls 1 of 2 3/14/2014

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 8 of 102



PJM Open Access Transmission Tariff

Date
KW

Demand
KVAR

Demand KVA
Power
Factor

KW
Demand

KVAR
Demand KWHRS

$ KW
Demand

$
KWHR

 $ Fuel
Charge

$ Fuel
Adjust

Actual
Fuel True-up

Sch 1A
$ KWHRS

$ Network RTO 
Start-up $ Other Credits

Total
PJM

Total
Cost

cts/
KWHR

Main 11,907 1,617 12,016 0.9909 11,907 1,617 7,149,573 $195,775.72 $68,781.75
Welder 194 142 240 0.8067 194 142 77,825 $3,183.17 $748.71

Phoenix 8,028 1,125 8,107 0.9903 8,028 1,125 4,728,287 $132,003.77 $45,488.02
Welder 9 27 29 0.3015 9 27 6,602 $141.40 $63.51
Dec-13 20,138 2,911 20,347 0.9897 20,138 2,911 11,962,287 $331,104.06 $115,081.99 $180,044.38 $87,154.83 $87,350.31 $1,025.49 $65,299.25 $206.53 $7,985.10 ($1,106.32) $73,410.05 $874,145.62 7.308

Main 11,197 1,504 11,298 0.9911 11,197 1,504 6,408,594 $184,100.75 $61,653.24
Welder 140 200 244 0.5729 140 200 52,045 $2,301.88 $500.70

Phoenix 7,429 858 7,478 0.9934 7,429 858 4,189,954 $122,140.71 $40,309.03
Welder 8 25 27 0.3151 8 25 6,556 $138.11 $63.07
Nov-13 18,774 2,588 18,951 0.9906 18,774 2,588 10,657,149 $308,681.45 $102,526.04 $160,400.76 ($4,289.50) ($26,790.13) $913.60 $63,192.82 $199.87 $8,177.02 ($959.43) $71,523.88 $612,052.50 5.743

Main 11,074 2,312 11,313 0.9789 11,074 2,312 6,466,839 $182,078.71 $62,213.57
Welder 238 179 298 0.7988 238 179 137,692 $3,908.26 $1,324.65

Phoenix 7,999 1,974 8,239 0.9709 7,999 1,974 4,334,232 $131,512.98 $41,697.04
Welder 10 31 33 0.3071 10 31 6,635 $166.06 $63.83
Oct-13 19,320 4,496 19,837 0.9740 19,320 4,496 10,945,397 $317,666.02 $105,299.10 $164,739.18 $12,395.66 $26,374.42 $938.31 $65,299.25 $206.53 $9,067.49 ($988.26) $74,523.32 $700,997.70 6.404

Main 15,924 4,583 16,570 0.9610 15,924 4,583 6,855,337 $261,823.07 $65,951.08
Welder 306 273 410 0.7468 306 273 138,670 $5,037.83 $1,334.06

Phoenix 11,887 4,349 12,657 0.9391 11,887 4,349 4,669,743 $195,441.78 $44,924.80
Welder 24 32 40 0.6024 24 32 6,648 $394.61 $63.96
Sep-13 28,141 9,236 29,618 0.9501 28,141 9,236 11,670,398 $462,697.28 $112,273.90 $175,651.17 $42,092.79 $3,060.70 $1,000.47 $63,192.82 $199.87 $9,109.48 ($917.87) $72,584.77 $868,360.61 7.441

Main 16,543 4,854 17,240 0.9595 16,543 4,854 7,898,702 $271,999.92 $75,988.67
Welder 287 267 392 0.7314 287 267 113,753 $4,710.63 $1,094.34

Phoenix 11,964 4,370 12,737 0.9393 11,963 4,370 5,525,867 $196,703.78 $53,161.05
Welder 8 17 19 0.4154 8 17 21,391 $129.89 $205.79
Aug-13 28,801 9,508 30,330 0.9496 28,801 9,508 13,559,712 $473,544.23 $130,449.85 $204,087.23 $8,981.95 ($35,351.84) $1,162.43 $65,299.25 $206.53 $9,643.55 ($1,020.06) $75,291.70 $857,003.12 6.320

Main 19,550 6,147 20,494 0.9540 19,550 6,147 8,600,694 $321,441.35 $82,742.12
Welder 122 168 207 0.5882 122 168 72,641 $2,004.28 $698.83

Phoenix 14,385 5,953 15,568 0.9240 14,385 5,953 6,014,292 $236,521.71 $57,859.89
Welder 18 30 35 0.5132 18 30 15,349 $295.96 $147.67

Jul-13 34,075 12,297 36,226 0.9406 34,075 12,297 14,702,976 $560,263.29 $141,448.51 $221,294.49 $69,969.99 $72,804.58 $1,260.44 $65,299.25 $206.53 $8,934.19 ($1,057.32) $74,643.09 $1,140,423.95 7.756
Main 14,830 4,272 15,433 0.9609 14,830 4,272 6,741,714 $243,834.78 $64,857.99

Welder 298 322 439 0.6792 298 322 102,884 $4,901.36 $989.78
Phoenix 10,721 3,707 11,343 0.9451 10,721 3,707 4,734,771 $176,269.67 $45,550.39
Welder 19 37 41 0.4645 19 37 14,096 $315.69 $135.61
Jun-13 25,868 8,337 27,178 0.9518 25,868 8,337 11,593,465 $425,321.49 $111,533.77 $174,493.25 $63,031.35 $51,836.92 $770.88 $54,110.29 $199.87 $8,339.01 ($879.14) $62,540.91 $888,757.69 7.666

Main 13,029 3,332 13,448 0.9688 13,029 3,332 6,455,809 $183,239.86 $78,302.51
Welder 382 403 555 0.6878 382 403 172,669 $5,366.82 $2,094.30

Phoenix 9,812 3,161 10,308 0.9518 9,812 3,161 4,524,171 $137,988.94 $54,873.67
Welder 19 44 48 0.4065 19 44 15,359 $272.84 $186.29
May-13 23,242 6,939 24,255 0.9582 23,242 6,939 11,168,009 $326,868.46 $135,456.78 $169,279.09 ($846.54) ($20,309.17) $742.59 $55,913.96 $206.53 $7,741.19 ($905.80) $63,698.47 $674,147.09 6.036

Main 10,379 1,565 10,496 0.9888 10,379 1,565 6,014,325 $145,970.61 $72,947.75
Welder 310 366 480 0.6455 310 366 144,533 $4,355.62 $1,753.04

Phoenix 7,106 1,507 7,264 0.9782 7,106 1,507 4,059,293 $99,944.76 $49,235.16
Welder 21 58 62 0.3419 21 58 15,181 $296.75 $184.13
Apr-13 17,816 3,497 18,156 0.9813 17,816 3,497 10,233,332 $250,567.74 $124,120.08 $155,111.73 $22,709.81 $22,668.66 $680.44 $54,110.29 $199.87 $7,727.55 ($862.24) $61,855.91 $637,033.93 6.225

Main 11,123 1,244 11,192 0.9938 11,123 1,244 6,608,087 $156,434.29 $80,149.49
Welder 391 357 529 0.7388 391 357 139,920 $5,500.43 $1,697.08

Phoenix 7,222 917 7,280 0.9920 7,222 917 4,346,681 $101,570.63 $52,720.90
Welder 22 51 55 0.3957 22 51 15,969 $306.60 $193.68
Mar-13 18,758 2,569 18,933 0.9908 18,758 2,569 11,110,656 $263,811.95 $134,761.15 $168,409.77 $19,466.98 $32,019.07 $738.78 $55,913.96 $206.53 $7,727.55 ($865.41) $63,721.41 $682,190.33 6.140

Main 11,561 1,160 11,619 0.9950 11,561 1,160 6,250,121 $162,593.97 $75,807.72
Welder 130 305 332 0.3914 130 305 137,266 $1,825.51 $1,664.90

Phoenix 7,514 864 7,563 0.9935 7,514 864 4,148,351 $105,675.56 $50,315.35
Welder 22 45 50 0.4456 22 45 14,696 $313.63 $178.25
Feb-13 19,227 2,374 19,373 0.9925 19,227 2,374 10,550,434 $270,408.67 $127,966.22 $159,918.21 $744.86 $9,033.45 $701.53 $50,502.94 $186.55 $7,727.55 ($899.26) $58,219.31 $626,290.72 5.936

Main 7,956 1,231 8,051 0.9882 7,956 1,231 6,835,812 $111,896.42 $82,911.57
Welder 24 351 352 0.0687 356 351 170,192 $5,006.78 $2,064.25

Phoenix 11,518 926 11,555 0.9968 11,518 926 4,535,845 $161,990.98 $55,015.26
Welder 356 46 359 0.9918 24 46 18,216 $340.35 $220.94
Jan-13 19,855 2,554 20,018 0.9918 19,855 2,554 11,560,064 $279,234.53 $140,212.02 $175,221.67 ($11,764.68) $18,342.99 $768.66 $55,913.96 $206.53 $7,727.55 ($1,124.11) $63,492.59 $664,739.12 5.750

Year to Date 2013: 139,713,881 $9,226,142 6.604

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
Cost of Electric Energy from Indiana-Michigan Power Company (AEP)

2013
ACTUAL BILLING COST

AEP Electric Bill-All Charges 2014.xls 2 of 2 3/14/2014

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 9 of 102



CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
WATER FUND

CuFt COMPARISONS
ROLLING TWELVE MONTHS

CuFt PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
GALLONS CuFt CuFt WATER BILLED PLUS PLANT TAP BILLED PLUS PLANT TAP
PUMPED PUMPED PLANT TAP QUALITY CuFt TO PUMPED TO MAINS TO PUMPED TO MAINS
TO MAINS TO MAINS UNBILLED FLUSHING BILLED (ROLLING 12 MOS) CURRENT MONTH

FISCAL 2012
July 2011 68,313,000 9,132,754 0 190,312 7,441,256 85.55% 81.48%
August 2011 59,907,000 8,008,957 103,610 244,928 7,402,180 84.90% 93.72%
September 2011 50,823,000 6,794,519 19,658 231,936 6,658,175 85.02% 98.28%
October 2011 38,457,000 5,141,310 23,888 231,936 4,862,072 85.07% 95.03%
November 2011 30,875,000 4,127,674 4,273 231,936 3,573,435 85.44% 86.68%
December 2011 30,441,000 4,069,652 17,174 231,936 3,191,493 85.57% 78.84%
January 2012 32,467,000 4,340,508 14,319 68,972 3,074,589 85.44% 71.16%
February 2012 29,495,000 3,943,182 23,262 68,972 3,219,167 85.84% 82.23%
March 2012 30,150,000 4,030,749 38,320 65,764 3,450,952 86.13% 86.57%
April 2012 32,927,000 4,402,005 31,678 68,972 3,378,738 86.74% 77.47%
May 2012 50,646,000 6,770,856 37,087 78,956 4,537,251 86.12% 67.01%
June 2012 72,150,000 9,645,722 41,402 144,360 6,461,594 84.46% 66.99%

526,651,000 70,407,888 354,672 1,858,980 57,250,902

FISCAL 2013
July 2012 97,223,000 12,997,727 42,043 149,172 9,601,173 81.95% 74.19%
August 2012 73,095,000 9,772,059 40,244 227,566 10,549,444 83.36% 108.37%
September 2012 51,928,000 6,942,246 36,348 218,946 7,875,634 84.80% 113.97%
October 2012 37,774,000 5,050,000 27,350 259,447 4,949,605 85.50% 98.55%
November 2012 28,082,000 3,754,278 16,894 255,838 3,275,439 86.15% 87.70%
December 2012 27,941,000 3,735,428 34,835 160,400 3,150,827 86.30% 85.28%
January 2013 29,090,000 3,889,037 35,639 83,007 3,204,712 86.22% 83.32%
February 2013 27,257,000 3,643,984 25,791 72,180 3,368,685 86.69% 93.15%
March 2013 28,716,000 3,839,037 30,416 75,789 2,955,708 87.40% 77.78%
April 2013 27,256,000 3,643,850 38,784 79,398 3,120,869 88.84% 86.71%
May 2013 44,617,270 5,964,876 52,314 342,855 3,962,497 88.14% 66.43%
June 2013 52,158,000 6,972,995 57,485 312,780 5,366,701 91.24% 76.96%

525,137,270 70,205,517 438,141 2,237,378 61,381,294

FISCAL 2014
July 2013 70,321,000 9,401,203 62,968 127,844 6,705,606 88.48% 72.00%
August 2013 62,517,000 8,357,888 48,003 196,427 8,322,168 88.81% 100.15%
September 2013 52,536,000 7,023,529 43,984 192,916 7,118,311 89.52% 101.98%
October 2013 35,699,000 4,772,594 41,176 182,891 5,303,775 90.51% 111.99%
November 2013 28,029,000 3,747,193 37,834 99,473 3,426,297 90.79% 92.45%
December 2013 28,262,000 3,778,342 37,166 178,083 2,904,054 90.43% 77.84%
January 2014 36,931,000 4,937,299 40,642 145,998 3,089,262 89.82% 63.39%
February 2014 36,711,000 4,907,888 36,230 128,741 3,454,550 89.24% 71.13%

351,006,000 46,925,936 348,003 1,252,373 40,324,023

Prior Year-to-date 372,390,000 49,784,759 259,143 1,426,556 45,975,519

Two Years Prior 340,778,000 45,558,556 206,184 1,500,928 39,422,367

Audit- Water treated vs. billings 3/7/2014

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 10 of 102



Col 6 & 11

Revenues: Month Actual Monthly Budget Prior year MTD
MTD Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance to 

Prior Year
YTD 

Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual
Variance to 

Budget
Variance to Prior 

Year
2013-14

Adopted Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Sales 271,775$             287,975$          180,547$          (16,200)$                  91,228$               2,558,612$          2,303,797$          2,334,980$               254,815$            223,632$            3,455,696$          74%
Charges for Service 6,874                   6,250                4,571                624                          2,303                   34,569                 50,000                 47,170                      (15,431)              (12,601)               75,000                 46%
Interest Income 5                          167                   3                       (161)                         3                          304                      1,333                   723                           (1,030)                (420)                    2,000                   15%
Special Assessment Revenue 7,361                   1,083                8,901                6,278                       (1,540)                  19,822                 8,667                   14,485                      11,155                5,337                  13,000                 152%
Other Revenue 4,224                   2,917                425                   1,307                       3,799                   32,750                 23,333                 32,061                      9,417                  689                     35,000                 94%
Total Revenues 290,239$             298,391$          194,447$          (8,152)$                    95,792$               2,646,057$          2,387,131$          2,429,419$               258,926$            216,638$            3,580,696$          

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Expenses: Month Actual Monthly Budget Prior year MTD
MTD Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance to 

Prior Year 0
YTD 

Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual
Variance to 

Budget
Variance to Prior 

Year
2013-14

Adopted Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Operating Expenses 98,595$               114,259$          101,140$          (15,664)$                  (2,545)$                767,640$             914,075$             771,310$                  (146,434)$          (3,670)$               1,371,112$          56%
Property Tax Equivalents 8,349                   12,274              7,103                (3,924)                      1,246                   66,795                 98,189                 56,825                      (31,394)              9,970                  147,284               45%
Capital Outlay 6,482                   26,076              336                   (19,594)                    6,146                   255,735               208,606               173,682                    47,129                82,052                312,909               82%
Debt Service -                       120,970            -                    (120,970)                  -                       717,373               967,757               694,913                    (250,385)            22,460                1,451,636            49%
Transfers Out 167                      2,824                5,621                (2,657)                      (5,455)                  1,333                   22,589                 6,581                        (21,256)              (5,248)                 33,884                 4%
Depreciation 47,917                 47,917              16,307              -                           31,610                 383,333               383,333               130,456                    -                     252,877              575,000               67%
Administrative Expenses 14,031                 18,376              14,317              (4,345)                      (286)                     154,408               147,008               148,567                    7,400                  5,841                  220,512               70%
Total Expenses 175,541$             342,695$          144,825$          (167,153)$                30,716$               2,346,617$          2,741,558$          1,982,335$               (394,941)$          364,283$            4,112,337$          

Net Fund Change 114,698$             (44,303)$           49,622$            159,002$                 65,076$               299,440$             (354,427)$            447,084$                  653,867$            (147,645)$           (531,641)$            

City of South Haven
Water Fund - Fund 591

For the period ended February 28, 2014

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 11 of 102



Col 6 & 11

Revenues: Month Actual Monthly Budget
Prior year 

MTD
MTD Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance to 

Prior Year
YTD 

Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual Variance to Budget
Variance to 
Prior Year

2013-14
Adopted Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Sales 162,204$            183,638$            104,261$       (21,434)$             57,943$              1,544,119$           1,469,103$      1,333,601$                75,016$                  210,519$       2,203,654$       70%
IPP Revenues -                      7,310                  17,300           (7,310)                 (17,300)               52,567                  58,483             64,677                       (5,916)                     (12,110)          87,724              60%
Interest Income 14                       625                     8                    (611)                    6                         701                       5,000               2,282                         (4,299)                     (1,580)            7,500                9%
Special Assessment Revenue 9,894                  1,423                  11,295           8,471                  (1,401)                 18,404                  11,381             20,259                       7,023                      (1,855)            17,071              108%
Grant Revenue -                      -                      -                 -                      -                      -                        -                   168,059                     -                          (168,059)        -                    #DIV/0!
Other Revenue 165                     292                     -                 (127)                    165                     5,461                    2,333               1,415                         3,128                      4,046             3,500                156%
Total Revenues 172,277$            193,287$           132,864$      (21,011)$            39,413$             1,621,252$          1,546,299$     1,590,293$               74,952$                 30,959$        2,319,449$      

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Expenses Month Actual Monthly Budget
Prior year 

MTD
MTD Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance to 

Prior Year 0
YTD 

Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual Variance to Budget
Variance to 
Prior Year

2013-14
Adopted Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Operating Expenses 111,949$            101,321$            79,891$         10,628$              32,058$              728,440$              810,568$         753,219$                   (82,128)$                 (24,779)$        1,215,852$       60%
Grant Expense-SSES 3,227                  3,333                  28,627           (107)                    (25,400)               104,485                26,667             218,689                     77,818                    (114,204)        40,000              261%
Property Tax Equivalents 7,453                  7,453                  7,317             0                         137                     59,627                  59,627             58,533                       0                             1,094             89,441              67%
Capital Outlay 4,799                  31,175                1,712             (26,376)               3,086                  397,566                249,399           196,764                     148,168                  200,802         374,098            106%
Transfers Out 19,917                23,680                6,871             (3,763)                 13,046                159,333                189,439           43,864                       (30,105)                   115,470         284,158            56%
Depreciation 22,917                22,917                20,379           -                      2,538                  183,333                183,333           163,030                     -                          20,303           275,000            67%
Administrative Expenses 21,211                25,966                21,824           (4,755)                 (613)                    211,158                207,726           207,236                     3,432                      3,921             311,588            68%
Total Expenses 191,471$            215,845$           166,620$      (24,373)$            24,851$             1,843,942$          1,726,758$     1,641,335$               117,184$               202,607$      2,590,137$      

Net Fund Change (19,194)$             (22,557)$             (33,756)$        3,363$                14,562$              (222,691)$             (180,459)$        (51,042)$                    (42,232)$                 (171,648)$      (270,688)$         

City of South Haven
Sewer Fund - Fund 592

For the period ended February 28, 2014

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 12 of 102



CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
ELECTRIC FUND

KWH COMPARISONS
ROLLING TWELVE MONTHS

PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
BILLED AND BILLED AND 

TOTAL KWH STREET LTS STREET LTS
KWH KWH KWH STREET LTS BILLED AND TO PURCHASED TO PURCHASED

PURCHASED BILLED STREET LTS 12 MO AVE. STREET LTS (ROLLING 12 MOS) CURRENT MONTH

FISCAL 2012
July 2011 15,964,582 12,755,514 37,013 52,009 12,792,527 95.31% 80.13%
August 2011 14,632,086 15,136,722 42,500 52,092 15,179,222 95.19% 103.74%
September 2011 11,307,801 12,319,850 47,553 52,087 12,367,403 95.87% 109.37%
October 2011 10,969,854 9,722,952 56,849 52,308 9,779,801 95.46% 89.15%
November 2011 10,739,972 10,221,480 61,585 52,280 10,283,065 95.52% 95.75%
December 2011 11,617,747 9,798,051 68,085 52,367 9,866,136 95.17% 84.92%
January 2012 11,913,417 11,146,773 65,812 52,441 11,212,585 94.66% 94.12%
February 2012 10,944,615 10,940,177 58,568 52,236 10,998,745 95.24% 100.49%
March 2012 11,050,285 10,825,582 58,568 52,363 10,884,150 95.14% 98.50%
April 2012 10,395,921 10,227,215 47,347 52,247 10,274,562 95.46% 98.83%
May 2012 11,744,237 10,681,872 44,415 52,218 10,726,287 95.09% 91.33%
June 2012 13,267,935 10,895,095 38,072 52,197 10,933,167 93.60% 82.40%

144,548,453 134,671,283 626,367 135,297,650

FISCAL 2013
July 2012 17,466,170 14,702,549 38,276 52,303 14,740,825 93.26% 84.40%
August 2012 14,358,453 15,845,089 43,385 52,376 15,888,474 93.50% 110.66%
September 2012 11,481,145 12,211,557 48,595 52,463 12,260,152 94.22% 106.79%
October 2012 10,545,910 9,741,443 54,699 52,284 9,796,142 94.11% 92.89%
November 2012 10,466,158 10,312,656 61,617 52,287 10,374,273 94.68% 99.12%
December 2012 11,131,795 9,798,623 69,065 52,368 9,867,688 94.46% 88.64%
January 2013 11,560,064 10,621,867 68,768 52,615 10,690,635 94.14% 92.48%
February 2013 10,550,434 10,544,686 59,658 52,705 10,604,344 94.21% 100.51%
March 2013 11,110,656 10,170,132 53,004 52,242 10,223,136 93.95% 92.01%
April 2013 10,233,332 9,906,424 48,201 52,313 9,954,625 94.19% 97.28%
May 2013 11,168,009 10,537,176 44,120 52,288 10,581,296 94.78% 94.75%
June 2013 11,593,465 10,064,318 37,708 52,258 10,102,026 95.35% 87.14%

141,665,592 134,456,520 627,096 135,083,616

FISCAL 2014
July 2013 14,702,976 12,364,189 37,740 52,213 12,401,929 94.64% 84.35%
August 2013 13,559,712 13,582,248 42,342 52,126 13,624,590 94.42% 100.48%
September 2013 11,670,399 12,462,283 48,796 52,143 12,511,079 95.03% 107.20%
October 2013 10,945,398 10,453,792 54,475 52,125 10,508,267 94.91% 96.01%
November 2013 10,657,150 9,502,492 58,511 51,866 9,561,003 94.96% 89.71%
December 2013 11,962,287 10,244,088 71,063 52,032 10,315,151 94.68% 86.23%
January 2014 12,608,593 10,865,756 65,878 51,791 10,931,634 94.09% 86.70%
February 2014 11,410,071 11,949,560 59,636 51,790 12,009,196 94.64% 105.25%

97,516,585 91,424,408 438,441 91,862,849

Prior Year-to-date 97,560,129 93,778,470 444,063 94,222,533

Two Years Prior 98,090,074 92,041,519 437,965 92,479,484

Page 1 P:\BPU\Audit - Electric Purchases vs. Billings.xls

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 13 of 102



Col 6 & 11

Revenues: Month Actual Monthly Budget Prior year MTD
MTD Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance to 

Prior Year
YTD 

Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual
Variance to 

Budget
Variance to Prior 

Year
2013-14

Adopted Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Electric Sales 1,299,906$       1,146,367$        849,120$           153,539$           450,786$             9,828,921$           9,170,936$           9,605,845$                657,985$              223,076$              13,756,404$          71%
Charges for Service 1,235$              12,500$             58,884$             (11,265)$            (57,649)$              134,632$              100,000$              120,870$                   34,632$                13,762$                150,000$               90%
Interest Income 3,938$              2,500$               3,685$               1,438$               253$                    50,963$                20,000$                14,121$                     30,963$                36,842$                30,000$                 170%
Other Revenue 1,566$              2,500$               1,506$               (934)$                 60$                      48,839$                20,000$                27,973$                     28,839$                20,866$                30,000$                 163%
Transfers In -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                   -$                     -$                      -$                     -$                           -$                     -$                     -$                       
Total Revenues 1,306,646$       1,163,867$        913,195$           142,779$           393,450$             10,063,355$         9,310,936$           9,768,809$                752,419$              294,546$              13,966,404$          

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Expenses Month Actual Monthly Budget Prior year MTD
MTD Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance to 

Prior Year 0
YTD 

Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual
Variance to 

Budget
Variance to Prior 

Year
2013-14

Adopted Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Purchased Power 682,503$          800,000$           626,291$           (117,497)$          56,212$               6,613,210$           6,400,000$           5,784,028$                213,210$              829,183$              9,600,000$            69%
Other Operating Expenses 197,725$          146,581$           151,262$           51,145$             46,463$               1,189,018$           1,172,646$           1,079,917$                16,372$                109,101$              1,758,969$            68%
Property Tax Equivalents 57,236$            57,236$             54,821$             (0)$                     2,415$                 457,887$              457,887$              438,566$                   (0)$                       19,321$                686,830$               67%
Energy Optimization Costs 23,146$            21,800$             43,834$             1,346$               (20,687)$              178,034$              174,401$              154,446$                   3,632$                  23,588$                261,602$               68%
Capital Outlay 3,611$              127,333$           892,398$           (123,722)$          (888,787)$            45,387$                1,018,667$           85,126$                     (973,280)$             (39,739)$               1,528,000$            3%
Transfer Out 14,754$            -$                  -$                  14,754$             14,754$               118,033$              118,033$              130,000$                   (0)$                       (11,967)$               177,049$               67%
Depreciation 45,000$            45,000$             39,510$             -$                   5,490$                 360,000$              360,000$              316,083$                   -$                     43,917$                540,000$               67%
Administrative Expenses 49,166$            60,153$             51,305$             (10,987)$            (2,139)$                467,434$              481,224$              467,388$                   (13,790)$               46$                       721,836$               65%
Total Expenses 1,073,141$       1,258,103$        1,859,420$        (184,962)$          (786,279)$            9,429,002$           10,182,857$         8,455,554$                (753,855)$             973,449$              15,274,286$          

Net Fund Change 233,505$          (94,236)$            (946,225)$          327,741$           1,179,729$          634,352$              (871,921)$             1,313,255$                1,506,274$           (678,903)$             (1,307,882)$           

City of South Haven
Electric Fund - Fund 582

For the period ended February 28, 2014

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 14 of 102



Board of Public Utilities  
Staff Report 

Agenda Item #9 
Prepared by Roger Huff 

Page 1 of 1 
March 31, 2014  

                                              
 
 

Board of Public Utilities Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item # 9 

Unresolved Issues 
 

City of South Haven 

 

 
New items shown in bold text. 
 
Completed items shown with single strikethrough text for one meeting, then double 
strikethrough text for the next meeting, then removed from the list. 
 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 3/26/12 – Stickland requested that staff provide the utility policy concerning tampering 

fees for review at the next meeting. Addressed under agenda item 15 at the April 30, 
2012 meeting. MMEA was contacted requesting their assistance in contacting fellow 
members for their policies regarding meter tampering, disconnection or tampering with 
service feeders/pipes, theft of service, and unsealed meter showing consumption.  No 
response has been received from MMEA.  City staff is contacting fellow IMMDA 
members plus Holland, Lowell, and Coldwater.  Policies have been received from  
Bluffton, IN; Coldwater, MI; Holland BPW; Lowell Light & Power; Niles, MI; Sturgis, MI; 
Zeeland BPW.  These policies will be compiled and summarized and distributed to staff 
and the BPU for review and comment.  Updating the Public Utilities Rules, Regulations 
and Policies (and Code of Ordinances) is one of City Council’s adopted priorities for 
2014-15. 

 4/30/12 – As a result of the tamper fee discussion with a resident, staff was requested to 
compile a list of electrical and plumbing contractors licensed to work in South Haven for 
the purpose of sending notification letters concerning the tamper policy.  City staff 
contacted the State of Michigan and Michigan Township services, but they could not 
provide specific information.  City of South Haven Building Services has a bulletin board 
available for posting notices.  Suggestion was made to add it to the building permit form 
or instructions.  Start with the City and then work with the townships. 

 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 15 of 102



Board of Public Utilities 
Staff Report 

Agenda Item #11 
Page 1 of 2 

March 31, 2014 
 

 

Board of Public Utilities                                                                                              Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item # 11 

Veterans Boulevard Underground Project Bids 
 

City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information: 
 

At the July 29, 2013 Regular Meeting of the Board of Public Utilities, GRP 
Engineering, Inc. presented the Electric Distribution System Study & Five-Year Plan. 
This study reviewed the City of South Haven’s substations and distribution system 
and provided recommendations for electrical system projects to significantly improve 
system reliability. The Board directed GRP Engineering to provide proposals for 
engineering services for four recommended projects.  Project #103 PR-D Circuit 
Veteran’s Boulevard is one of those projects. 
 
Project scope is to construct a new circuit (PR-D) Veteran’s Blvd from 2nd Avenue to 
Phoenix Road (0.6 miles) with #500kCM 15kV CU underground including padmount 
switchgear to relieve load and reduce geographic area from circuit PR-A. 
Additionally, the project will include design and construction of the new substation 
circuit exits for both PR-C and PR-D plus system protection changes on PR-A as 
listed in the system study. 
 
Two materials quotes and two construction bids were received as follows: 
 

A. Medium Voltage Underground Cable – Quotes were received from three (3) 
material vendors.  Power Line Supply (PLS) submitted the lowest cable cost 
at $11.78 per foot for a total quote of $176,700.  GRP Engineering 
recommends accepting the quote from PLS. 

 
B. Padmount Switchgear – Quotes were requested from four (4) material 

vendors and two (2) responses were received.  Champion-Charter submitted 
the lowest total price in the amount of $48,018.00.  GRP Engineering 
recommends accepting the quote from Champion-Charter. 

 
C. Conduit Installation – On March 17, 2014, bids were opened.  A copy of Bid 

Tabulation #2014-01 prepared by GRP Engineering, Inc. is attached.  A total 
of five (5) qualified companies were invited to bid and two (2) submitted bids.  
The low bidder is Compton, Inc. of South Haven, Michigan. GRP Engineering 
has reviewed the bids and recommends that the project be awarded to 
Compton, Inc. in the amount of $117,917.50. 

 
D. Electrical Cable and Equipment Installation – On March 17, 2014, bids were 

opened.  A copy of Bid Tabulation #2014-02 prepared by GRP Engineering, 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 16 of 102



Board of Public Utilities 
Staff Report 

Agenda Item #11 
Page 2 of 2 

March 31, 2014 
 

 

Inc. is attached.  A total of three (3) qualified companies were invited to bid 
and one (1) submitted a bid. GRP Engineering has reviewed the bid and 
recommends that the project be awarded to Kent Power, Inc. in the amount of 
$118,215.95. 

 
Funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2013-14 Adopted Budget for electrical system 
improvements. 

 
Recommendation: 
 

Approve a recommendation to City Council to award Veterans Boulevard 
Underground Project materials quotes and construction bids as follows: 
 

A. Medium Voltage Underground Cable to Power Line Supply in the amount of 
$176,700. 

B. Padmount Switchgear to Champion-Charter in the amount of $48,018.00. 
C. Conduit Installation to Compton, Inc. in the amount of $117,917.50. 
D. Electrical Cable and Equipment Installation to Kent Power, Inc. in the amount 

of $118,215.95. 
 

 
Support Material: 
 

Underground Cable  GRP Engineering Recommendation Letter 
Padmount Switchgear  GRP Engineering Recommendation Letter 
Conduit Installation  Bid Tabulation #2014-01 
     GRP Engineering Recommendation Letter 
Cable & Equipment Installation Bid Tabulation #2014-02 
     GRP Engineering Recommendation Letter 
 

 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 17 of 102



 
 
 
 Power Utility & Electrical Engineering 
 

660 Cascade W Parkway SE  Suite 65  459 Bay Street 
Grand Rapids MI  49546  Petoskey MI  49770 
P:  616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P:  231.439.9683 
F:  616.285.6448  F:  231.439.9698 

 

March 3, 2014 
13-0620.01 
 
Mr. Bill Conklin 
City of South Haven 
1199 8th Avenue 
South Haven, MI 49090 
 
RE:  Veteran’s Blvd Underground 

Underground Cable Bid Evaluation & Recommendation 
 
Dear Bill: 
 
GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the medium voltage underground cable quotes 
for the Veteran’s Blvd Underground project.  Three material vendors provide quotes for the cable.  
Power Line Supply (PLS) & HD Supply quoted Okonite cable. RESCO quoted Kerite cable.  Quotations 
were requested to be submitted both on a fixed metals price and with metals escalation.  PLS’s quote for 
Okonite cable with fixed metals price expired on the day of submittal, HD Supply and RESCO’s quotes 
did not include a fixed price. 
 
PLS submitted the lowest cable cost at $11.78 / foot (total quote of $176,700.)  HD Supply’s quote was 
$11.91 / foot and RESCO’s quote was $14.15 / foot.  All cable quoted will be subject to metals 
escalation charges.  A CU metals base price of $3.65 was utilized by all bidders to insure evaluation on 
the same base.  The actual cable cost will be adjusted higher or lower based on the price of CU on the 
day of shipment. 
 
GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that the City of South Haven accept the quote from Power Line 
Supply.  Please advise us upon approval and we will direct PLS to proceed with ordering the cable.  
Please contact me should you have any additional questions regarding this evaluation and 
recommendation. 
 
Sincerely, 
GRP Engineering, Inc. 
 
 
 
Michael P. McGeehan, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
cc: City of South Haven 
 Mr. Shawn Eisner, Mr. Roger Huff, Mr. Jim Pezzuto 
 GRP Engineering, Inc. 
 Mr. Rob Shelley 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 18 of 102



 
 
 
 Power Utility & Electrical Engineering 
 

660 Cascade W Parkway SE  Suite 65  459 Bay Street 
Grand Rapids MI  49546  Petoskey MI  49770 
P:  616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P:  231.439.9683 
F:  616.285.6448  F:  231.439.9698 

 

March 3, 2014 
13-0620.01 
 
Mr. Bill Conklin 
City of South Haven 
1199 8th Avenue 
South Haven, MI 49090 
 
RE:  Veteran’s Blvd Underground 

Switchgear Bid Evaluation & Recommendation 
 
Dear Bill: 
 
GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the padmount switchgear quotes for the 
Veteran’s Blvd Underground project.  Quotations were requested from four material vendors and two 
responses were received.  Champion-Charter and S&C Electric Company provided quotes for these 
switchgear and associated fuses. 
 
Champion-Charter submitted the lowest total price in the amount of $48,018.00.  S&C Electric 
Company’s total price was 1% higher than Champion-Charter and their delivery time was 8 weeks 
longer for the switchgear. 
 
GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that the City of South Haven purchase the padmount switchgear 
from Champion-Charter.  Please advise us upon approval and we will direct them to proceed with 
ordering.  Please contact me should you have any additional questions regarding this evaluation and 
recommendation. 
 
Sincerely, 
GRP Engineering, Inc. 
 
 
 
Michael P. McGeehan, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
 
cc: City of South Haven 
 Mr. Shawn Eisner, Mr. Roger Huff, Mr. Jim Pezzuto 
 GRP Engineering, Inc. 
 Mr. Rob Shelley 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 19 of 102



 13-0620.01 Bid #2014-01 Bid Tab 3/18/2014

BID TABULATION BID #2014-01

OWNER: ENGINEER:
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN VETERAN'S BLVD UNDERGROUND CONDUIT INSTALLATION GRP ENGINEERING, INC.
1199 8TH AVE 459 BAY STREET
SOUTH HAVEN, MI 49090 PETOSKEY, MI 49770

BIDDERS
BID 

SECURITY
CONTRACTOR BASE 

BID PRICE
OWNER-FURNISHED 

MATERIAL
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION 

COST REMARKS
Compton, Inc.

1201 8th Avenue 5% $117,917.50 $23,000.00 $140,917.50
South Haven, MI 49090

Buist Electric
8650 Byron Center Ave, SW 5% $121,538.00 $23,000.00 $144,538.00

Byron Center, MI 49315
Parkway Electric
11952 James St. No Bid
Holland, MI 49424

Windemuller Electric
1176 Electric Avenue No Bid
Wayland, MI 49348
Western Tel-Com

4273 Blue Star Highway No Bid
Holland, MI 49423

This is to certify that at 2:00p.m., local time on Monday, March 17, 2014, the bids tabulated herein were publicly opened and read.

GRP Engineering, Inc.

By:
Robert A. Shelley, P.E.

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 20 of 102



 
 
 
 Power Utility & Electrical Engineering 
 

660 Cascade W Parkway SE  Suite 65  459 Bay Street 
Grand Rapids MI  49546  Petoskey MI  49770 
P:  616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P:  231.439.9683 
F:  616.285.6448  F:  231.439.9698 

 

March 19, 2014 
13-0620.01 
 
 
Mr. Roger Huff 
City of South Haven 
1199 8th Avenue 
South Haven, MI 49090 
 
RE:  Veteran’s Blvd Underground 

Conduit Installation Bid Evaluation & Recommendation 
 
 
Dear Roger: 
 
GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the bids submitted to the City of South Haven 
on March 17, 2014 for the Conduit Installation portion of the Veteran’s Blvd Underground project.  Bids 
were solicited from five experienced contractors and two bids were received.  Of the two bids received, 
Compton, Inc. submitted the low bid in the amount of $117,917.50.  Compton, Inc. submitted a 
complete and conforming bid.  A complete bid tabulation is attached to this letter 
 
Total estimated cost for this portion of the project was $106,000, including material.  Difference in costs 
is due to extensive directional boring that was not anticipated in the original estimate.  GRP 
Engineering, Inc. recommends the City of South Haven accept the low bid from Compton, Inc. 
 
Please contact me should you have any additional questions regarding this evaluation and 
recommendation. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
GRP Engineering, Inc. 
 
 
 
Michael P. McGeehan, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
 
cc: City of South Haven 
 Mr. Bill Conklin, Mr. Jim Pezzuto 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 21 of 102



 13-0620.01 Bid #2014-02 Bid Tab 3/18/2014

BID TABULATION BID #2014-02

OWNER: ENGINEER:
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN VETERAN'S BLVD UNDERGROUND GRP ENGINEERING, INC.
1199 8TH AVE ELETRICAL CABLE & EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION 459 BAY STREET
SOUTH HAVEN, MI 49090 PETOSKEY, MI 49770

BIDDERS
BID 

SECURITY
CONTRACTOR BASE 

BID PRICE
OWNER-FURNISHED 

MATERIAL
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION 

COST REMARKS
Kent Power
90 Spring St 5% $118,215.95 $245,000.00 $363,215.95

Kent City, MI 49330
The Hydaker-Wheatlake Company

420 N. Roth Street No Bid
Reed City, MI  49677

Newkirk Electric, Inc.
1875 Roberts Street No Bid

Muskegon, MI  49442

This is to certify that at 2:00p.m., local time on Monday, March 17, 2014, the bids tabulated herein were publicly opened and read.

GRP Engineering, Inc.

By:
Robert A. Shelley, P.E.

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 22 of 102



 
 
 
 Power Utility & Electrical Engineering 
 

660 Cascade W Parkway SE  Suite 65  459 Bay Street 
Grand Rapids MI  49546  Petoskey MI  49770 
P:  616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P:  231.439.9683 
F:  616.285.6448  F:  231.439.9698 

 

March 19, 2014 
13-0620.01 
 
 
Mr. Roger Huff 
City of South Haven 
1199 8th Avenue 
South Haven, MI 49090 
 
RE:  Veteran’s Blvd Underground 

Electrical Cable & Equipment Installation Bid Evaluation & Recommendation 
 
 
Dear Roger: 
 
GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the bid submitted to the City of South Haven on 
March 17, 2014 for the Electrical Cable & Equipment Installation portion of the Veteran’s Blvd 
Underground project.  Bids were solicited from three experienced contractors and one bid was received.  
Kent Power, Inc. submitted the only bid in the amount of $118,215.95.  Kent Power, Inc. submitted a 
complete and conforming bid.  A complete bid tabulation is attached to this letter 
 
Total estimated labor cost for this portion of the project was $85,000.  Kent Power’s unit prices are 
much higher than on similar 2013 projects which was the basis for the project estimate.  GRP 
Engineering, Inc. recommends the City of South Haven accept the low bid from Kent Power, Inc. 
 
Please contact me should you have any additional questions regarding this evaluation and 
recommendation. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
GRP Engineering, Inc. 
 
 
 
Michael P. McGeehan, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
 
cc: City of South Haven 
 Mr. Bill Conklin, Mr. Jim Pezzuto 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 23 of 102



Board of Public Utilities 
Staff Report 

Agenda Item #12 
Page 1 of 2 

March 31, 2014 
 

 

Board of Public Utilities                                                                                              Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item # 12 

Core City Secondary Upgrades – Phase 1 
 

City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information: 
 

At the July 29, 2013 Regular Meeting of the Board of Public Utilities, GRP 
Engineering, Inc. presented the Electric Distribution System Study & Five-Year Plan. 
This study reviewed the City of South Haven’s substations and distribution system 
and provided recommendations for electrical system projects to significantly improve 
system reliability. The Board directed GRP Engineering to provide proposals for 
engineering services for four recommended projects.  Core City Secondary 
Upgrades is one of those projects. 
 
Project scope is to rebuild secondary lines within the core city area which are 
generally located in back lot areas. All poles and secondary conductor are scheduled 
to be replaced with primary conductor and transformers as determined through a 
complete inventory and design. The “core city” area is generally defined as the area 
bounded by Lake Michigan to the west, the river and Phoenix Street to the north, 
Blue Star Highway to the east, and Aylworth Avenue to the south. 
 
Reconstruction will occur in several phases to spread out construction costs over 
time. Each phase will include several residential blocks (estimated 16 blocks), 
inventory and engineering design completed, material purchased, construction 
contract bid to qualified contractors based on a firm number of units, pole 
replacement and line reconstruction, final inspections and inventory for contractor 
invoicing. 
 
On March 17, 2014, bids were opened for Phase 1 of the project.  A copy of Bid 
Tabulation #2014-03 prepared by GRP Engineering, Inc. is attached.  A total of 
seven qualified companies were invited to bid and two submitted bids.  The low 
bidder is Kent Power, Inc. of Kent City, Michigan. GRP Engineering held post-bid 
discussions with Kent Power, Inc. and concluded that the price was incorrectly 
entered for one line item, which reduces their bid to $478,852.98. GRP Engineering 
recommends that the project be awarded to Kent Power, Inc. in the amount of 
$478,852.98.  Kent Power has a history of successfully completing projects for South 
Haven and other municipal clients. 
 
Funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2013-14 Adopted Budget for electrical system 
improvements. 

 
Recommendation: 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 24 of 102



Board of Public Utilities 
Staff Report 

Agenda Item #12 
Page 2 of 2 

March 31, 2014 
 

 

 
Approve a recommendation to City Council to award contractual services for Core 
City Secondary Upgrades – Phase 1 to Kent Power, Inc. of Kent City, Michigan in the 
amount of $478,852.98.  Labor and materials to be provided are defined in the 
contract documents prepared by GRP Engineering. 

 
Support Material: 
 

Bid Tabulation #2014-03 
GRP Engineering Recommendation Letter 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 25 of 102



BID TABULATION #2014-03

OWNER: CORE CITY SECONDARY UPGRADES ENGINEER:
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN PHASE 1 GRP ENGINEERING, INC.
1199 8TH AVENUE 459 BAY STREET
SOUTH HAVEN, MI 49090 PETOSKEY, MI 49770

BIDDERS BID BOND
CONTRACTOR BASE BID 

PRICE REMARKS
Kent Power Unit Price Error (#4 TX)
90 Spring St 5% $541,104.18 Reduces Bid Price to

Kent City, MI 49330 $478,852.98
CC Power

3850 Beebe Road 5% $595,673.00
Kalkaska, MI 49646

SKF Electrical Contracting
10495 Deal Rd No Bid

Williamsburg, MI 49690
The Hydaker-Wheatlake Company

420 N. Roth Street No Bid
Reed City, MI  49677

NG Gilbet
101 S. Main St No Bid

Parker City, IN 47368
Newkirk Electric, Inc.
1875 Roberts Street No Bid

Muskegon, MI  49442
Henkels & McCoy

985 Jolly Rd No Bid
Blue Bell, PA 19422

This is to certify that at 2:00p.m., local time on Monday, March 17, 2014, the bids tabulated herein were publicly opened and read.

GRP Engineering, Inc.

Robert A Shelley, P.E.

 14-0669.01 Bid #2014-03 Bid Tab 3/24/2014

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 26 of 102



 
 
 
 Power Utility & Electrical Engineering 
 

660 Cascade W Parkway SE  Suite 65  459 Bay Street 
Grand Rapids MI  49546  Petoskey MI  49770 
P:  616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P:  231.439.9683 
F:  616.285.6448  F:  231.439.9698 

 

March 19, 2014 
14-0669.01 
 
 
Mr. Roger Huff 
City of South Haven 
1199 8th Avenue 
South Haven, MI 49090 
 
RE:  Core City Secondary Upgrades Phase 1 

Bid Evaluation & Recommendation 
 
 
Dear Roger: 
 
GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the bids submitted to the City of South Haven 
on March 17, 2014 for the Core City Secondary Upgrade – Phase 1 project.  Bids were solicited from 
seven experienced contractors and two bids were received.  Kent Power, Inc. submitted the low bid in 
the amount of $541,104.18.  Post bid discussions with Kent Power, Inc. regarding their unit price for #4 
TX concluded that the price was incorrected entered into the spreadsheet as $160.00 instead of $1.60.  
Revising this unit price reduces their bid to $478,852.98.  A complete bid tabulation is attached to this 
letter 
 
Considering the very high unit prices for this first of four project phases, the City of South Haven must 
carefully review the overall project scope prior to accepting the low bid from Kent Power, Inc. 
 
Please contact me should you have any additional questions regarding this evaluation and 
recommendation. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
GRP Engineering, Inc. 
 
 
 
Michael P. McGeehan, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
 
cc: City of South Haven 
 Mr. Bill Conklin, Mr. Jim Pezzuto 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 27 of 102



Board of Public Utilities 
Staff Report 

Agenda Item #13 
Page 1 of 2 

March 31, 2014 
 

 

Board of Public Utilities                                                                                              Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item # 13 

Amendment of Cost-Based Formula Rate 
Agreement with Indiana Michigan Power Company 

City of South Haven 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
 
The City of South Haven is currently party to a Cost-Based Formula Rate Agreement for 
Full Requirements Electric Service with Indiana Michigan Power Company (the 
Agreement).  The City entered into this Agreement effective July 1, 2006. 
 
The delivery period for this Agreement runs from July 1, 2006 through May 31, 2026 
unless the Agreement is terminated in accordance with Section 2.2 (b) or 2.2 (c).  
Section 2.2 (b) of the Agreement permits the Customer (City of South Haven) to cancel 
the agreement by providing notification on or prior to May 31 of any year, 7 years prior to 
the effective date of termination.  For example, the City could provide notification of 
cancellation before June 1, 2014 and the agreement would terminate on May 31, 2021. 
 
On October 31, 2012, all American Electric Power (AEP) subsidiaries, including Indiana 
Michigan Power Company, filed documents with the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC) requesting termination of their Pool Agreement effective January 1, 
2014.  The Pool Agreement will be replaced with a Power Coordination Agreement 
(PCA).  The new Power Coordination Agreement will require Indiana Michigan Power 
Company and the other AEP subsidiaries to meet their respective load and reserve 
obligations. 
 
Indiana Michigan Power Company sells energy to other AEP subsidiaries and the 
revenue from these sales (off system sales) is shared with the City and other Indiana 
and Michigan Municipal Distributors Association (IMMDA) members.  As a result, the off 
system sales revenue can reduce the cost that IMMDA members pay for purchased 
power.  AEP has indicated that there should be no substantial cost increases to the City 
as a result of the new PCA.  However, they are not able to provide accurate information 
regarding off system sales revenue under the new PCA.  The primary issue for IMMDA 
members is that a reduction in off system sales revenues could result in an increase in 
purchased power costs.  However, if changes occur, they will probably be gradual and 
occur over a long period of time. 
 
As a result of these changes, IMMDA, acting on behalf of its members, began 
negotiations with AEP and Indiana Michigan Power Company to obtain a modification of 
the Cost-Based Formula Rate Agreements.  Working the our legal representative, Lisa 
Gast of Duncan, Weinberg, Genzer & Pembroke, IMMDA has negotiated a settlement 
that would modify the current Agreement for each member.  The proposed contract 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 28 of 102



Board of Public Utilities 
Staff Report 

Agenda Item #13 
Page 2 of 2 

March 31, 2014 
 

 

modification will change the termination period in Section 2.2 (b) of the Agreement.  The 
modified Agreement will replace the seven (7) year notification period with a four (4) year 
notification period, provided that notification may not be given prior to May 31, 2015.  For 
example, the City could provide notification of cancellation before June 1, 2015 and the 
agreement would terminate on May 31, 2019. 
 
IMMDA will continue to monitor power costs moving forward.  If the new PCA results in 
an increase in purchase power costs to the members, the shortened notification period 
will permit cancellation of the Agreement at an earlier date.  If the City or other IMMDA 
members decided to give notice of early cancellation, they would then need to enter into 
negotiations with Indiana Michigan Power Company for a revised Agreement or they 
could issue a request for proposals to solicit pricing from other unregulated power 
providers.  The IMMDA Board of Directors is recommending that all IMMDA members 
review and approve the proposed Amendment. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Board is requested to pass a motion recommending that Council approve the 
Amendment to the Cost-Based Formula Rate Agreement for Full Requirements Electric 
Service, as amended and currently on file as Indiana Michigan Power Company FERC 
Rate Schedule 108.  Council’s approval will take the form of a resolution authorizing the 
Mayor to execute the Amendment on behalf of the City. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Cost Based Formula Rate Agreement 
FERC Rate Schedule 108 
Draft Council Resolution 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Larry Halberstadt, PE 
City Engineer 

 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 29 of 102



m
AMERICAN
ELECTRIC
POWER

James R Bacha

Assistant General Counsel

Regulatory Services

614 716 1615 P

614 716 2950 F

jrbacha@aep com

American Electric Power

1 Riverside Plaza

Columbus OH 43215

AEP com

June 2 2006

Robert G Stickland P E

Director of Public Works

City of South Haven Michigan
539 Phoenix St

South Haven Michigan 49090 1499

I
Dear Mr Stickland

Indiana Michigan Power Company looks forward to providing service to the City of

South Haven pursuant to our new Cost Based Formula Rate Agreement for Full

Requirements Electric Service An executed copy of the Agreement is attached for

your records Also enclosed is a copy of the required FERC Filing You will be

advised when the FERC accepts the Agreement for filing

Sincerely

1 1JJL
James R Bacha

JRB mjl

Enclosures

cc Kent D Curry without enclosures

Vincent E Findley without enclosures

Doc 348432

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 30 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

COST BASED FORMULA RATE

AGREEMENT FOR

FULL REQUIREMENTS ELECTRIC SERVICE

DATED AS OF MAY 2006

BY AND BETWEEN

INDIANA MICmGAN POWER COMPANY

AND

THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN MICIDGAN

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006

Original Sheet No 1

Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 31 of 102



fi

Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 2

RECITALS

ARTICLE 1

ARTICLE 2

Section 2 1

Section 2 2

Section 23

Section 24

ARTICLE 3

Section 3 1

Section 32

Section 33

Section 34

Section 35

Section 3 6

Section 3 7

ARTICLE 4

Section 4 1

Section 42

Section 43

Section 44

Section 45

Section 4 6

Section 4 7

Section 4 8

Section 4 9
Section 4 10
Section 4 11

ARTICLE 5

Section 5 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS 6

TERM SERVICE AND DELIVERY PROVISIONS 12

Term 12

Delivery Period 12

Planning 13

Delivery Points 14

SALE AND PURCHASE 14

Full Requirements Service 14

Transmission Service Ancillary Services and Local Facilities
Service

16

Existing Generation IZ

New Generation 17

Qualifying Facility Purchases
19

Retail Choice 20

Renewable Portfolio Standards 20

MONTHLY RATES AND BILLING 21

General Principles Regarding Monthly Charges for Full Requirements
Electric

Service
21

Estimated GenerationDemand Generation Energy and Generation

Fuel Charges 21

True Up ofGeneration Demand and Generation Energy
Charges

22

Review Process 22

Fuel Adjustment Charge
23

Cost ofService Formulas 24

Billing Demand and Energy 26

Determination ofMonthly Bill 26

Payment Date 27

Payment Netting 27

Billing Disputes 27

TRANSMISSION PROVIDER IMPLEMENTATION 28

Implementation
28

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 32 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 3

ARTICLE 6

Section 6 1

Section 6 2

ARTICLE 7

Section 7 1

Section 7 2

Section 7 3

Section 74

ARTICLE 8

Section 8 1

Section 82

Section 83

Section 84

ARTICLE 9

Section 9 1

Section 92

CREDITW0 RTIDNESS
28

Financial Information 28

Credit Assurances 28

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 31

Events ofDefault 31

Declaration ofan Early Termination 31

Suspension ofPerformance 32

Obligations AtExpiration or
Termination

32

CURTAILMENT TEMPORARY INTERRUPTIONS AND FORCE

MAJEURE 33

Curtailment
33

Temporary Interruptions 33

Force Maj eure
33

Transmission Curtailment 33

NOTICES REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PARTIES 34

Notices
J4

Authority ofRepresentative 35

ARTICLE 10 LIABILITY INDEMNIFICATION AND RELATIONSIDP OF

PARTIES 35

Section10 1 LimitatioR onConsequential Incidental andIndirect Damages 35

Section 10 2 Indemnification 36

Section 103 Title RiskofLoss 37

ARTICLE 11 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 37

Section 111

Section 112

ARTICLE 12

Section 12 1

Section 12 2

Company and Customer Representations and
Warranties

37

Customer Representations and Warranties 38

ASSIGNMENT 38

General Prohibition Against Assignments 38

Exceptions to ProhibitionAgainst Assignments 38

ARTICLE 13 CONFIDENTIALITY 39

Section 13 1 Treatment ofConfidential Information 39

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 33 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 4

ARTICLE 14 REGULATORY AUTHORITIES 40

Section 14 1 Effect ofRegulation
40

ARTICLE 15 DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND STANDARD OF REVIEW FOR

PROPOSED CHANGES 41

Section 15 1

Section 15 2

Section 153

Resolution byOfficers ofthe
Parties

41

Procedures for Resolution ofDisputes 41

Standard of
Review

42

ARTICLE 16 GENERAL PROVISIONS 43

Section 16 1

Section 16 2

Section 16 3

Section 164

Section 16 5

Section 16 6

Section 16 7

Section 16 8

Section 16 9

Section 16 10

Section 16 11

Section 16 12

ThirdParty Beneficiaries 43

No Dedication of
Facilities

43

Waivers
43

Interpretation
43

Severability
43

Modification 43

Counterparts
43

Headings
43

Audit
43

Records
44

Survival
44

Cooperation to Effectuate Agreement 44

ARTICLE 17 RULES OF CONSTRUCTION 44

APPENDIX A LIST OF DELIVERY POINTS 47

APPENDIX B COST OF SERVICE FORMULAS 48

APPENDIX C ASSIGNMENT OF PJM CHARGES AND CREDITS 67

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 34 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 5

COST BASED FORMULA RATE

AGREEMENT FOR FULL REOUIREMENTS ELECTRIC SERVICE

This AGREEMENT is dated as of Mayat2006 Effective Date and is by and

between the Indiana Michigan Power Company hereinafter referred to as Company and the

City ofSouth Haven Michigan Customer Company and Customer each individually

referred to herein as a Party or collectively the Parties

RECITALS

WHEREAS Company is acorporation organized and existing under the laws ofthe

State ofIndiana with its principal place ofbusiness at One Summit Square 110 East Wayne

Street Fort Wayne Indiana 46802 and owns and operates facilities for the generation
transmission and distribution of electric power and energy in the States ofIndiana and Michigan

and

WHEREAS Customer is amunicipal corporation chartered and existing under and by

virtue of the laws ofthe State ofMichigan with its principal place ofbusiness at 539 Phoenix

Street South Haven Michigan 49090 1499 and

WHEREAS Company is an electric utility subsidiary ofAmericanElectric Power

Company Inc AEP is part ofthe integrated AEP System and is asignator to various

agreements with one ormore AEPsubsidiaries and

WHEREAS Customer desires to purchase Full Requirements Electric Service from

Company to meetCustomer s Retail Load and

WHEREAS Company has proposed to supplyFull Requirements Electric Service to

Customer subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and

WHEREAS the Parties have met numerous times to develop acost based formula rate

for Full Requirements Electric Service

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein

contained the Parties hereby agree that this Agreement together with the Appendices attached

hereto and Related Documents sets forth the terms under which Company will supply Full

Requirements Electric Service to Customer during the Delivery Period constitutes the entire

agreement between the Parties relating to Full Requirements Electric Service at cost based rates

and supersedes any other agreements written or oral including without limitation any

preliminary term sheet between the Parties concerning this subjectmatter

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

fl

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 35 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 6

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS

The following words and terms shall be understood to have the following meanings when used in

this Agreement or in any associated documents entered into in conjunction with this Agreement

unless a different meaning is plainly required by the context This Agreement includes certain

capitalized terms that are not explicitly defmed herein Such capitalized terms shall have the

meanings specified in the Related Documents as the same are in effect from time to time

which meanings are incorporated herein by reference and made apart hereof In the event of any

inconsistency between a definition contained herein and a definition contained in Related

Documents the definition in this Agreement shall control for purposes of this Agreement

Certain other definitions as required appear in subsequent parts ofthis Agreement

1 1

1 2

1 3

14

1 5

AEP Interconnection Agreement means the agreement on file at FERC

commonly referred to as the AEP Pool Agreement that regulates the inter

company charges and credits for capacity and energy among the following AEP

Operating Companies Appalachian Power Company Columbus Southern

Power Company Indiana Michigan Power Company Kentucky Power

Company and Ohio Power Company

AEP Operating Companies means the electric utility subsidiaries ofAEP

consisting ofAppalachian Power Company Columbus Southern Power

Company Indiana Michigan Power Company Kentucky Power Company Ohio

Power Company Southwest Electric Power Company and Public Service

Company ofOklahoma AEP Operating Companies may include fewer than

all ofthe listed companies ormay include the American Electric Power Service

Corporation AEPSC where the context requires such interpretation

Affiliate means with respect to any person or corporation any other person or

corporation other than an individual that directly or indirectly through one or

more intermediaries controls or is controlled by or is under common control

with such person or corporation For this purpose control means the direct

or indirect ownership of fifty percent 50 or more of the outstanding capital
stock orother equity interests having ordinary voting power

Agreement means this Cost Based Formula Rate Agreement for Full

Requirements Electric Service including the Appendices and Related

Documents as amended modified or supplemented from time to time

Ancillary Services means the following services related to the Full

Requirements Electric Service to be supplied under the terms ofthis Agreement
to the Delivery Points those services set forth in the OATT schedules and any

supplemental or revised tariffs or schedules adopted by the Transmission

Provider including without limitation Scheduling System Control and

Dispatch Service Transmission Owners Scheduling System Control and

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

If

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 36 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 7

Dispatch Service Reactive Supply and Voltage Control from Generation

Sources Service Regulation and Frequency Response Service Energy

Imbalance Service Operating Reserve Spinning Reserve Service Operating

Reserve Supplemental Reserve Service and Black Start Service as each of

those services is defmed in the OATT

1 6 Billing Period means the calendar month which shall be the standard period for

all payments and metering measurements under this Agreement unless

otherwise specifically required by the Transmission Provider or the entity

providing meter reading services

1 7 Business Day means a day ending at 5 00 p m Eastern Prevailing Time other

than Saturday Sunday and any day which is a legal holiday or aday designated

as aholiday by the North AmericanElectric Reliability Council provided that

with respect to any payment due hereunder or any other obligation ofCompany

or Customer a Business Day means a day ending at 5 00 p m Eastern

Prevailing Time other than Saturday Sunday and any day which is a legal

holiday or a day on which banking institutions in Michigan andor Columbus

Ohio are authorized by law to close and provided further that with respect to

any notices for scheduling to be delivered pursuant to any Section hereof ai

Business Day shall be a day other than Saturday Sunday and any day which

is a legal holiday or a day designated as aholiday by the Transmission Provider

18 Calendar Year means a twelve consecutive month period commencing at the

start ofhour ending HE 0100 on January 1 and ending at the conclusion of

HE 2400 on December 31

1 9 Claims means all third party claims or actions threatened or filed and whether

groundless false fraudulent or otherwise that directly or indirectly relate to the

subject matter ofthis Agreement and the resulting losses damages expenses

reasonable attorneys fees and court costs whether incurred by settlement or

otherwise and whether such claims or actions are threatened or filed prior to or

after the termination ofthis Agreement

1 10 Confidential Information means such information as the Parties agree shall

remainconfidential Notwithstanding the foregoing the following shall not

constitute Confidential Information

a Information which was already in aParty s possession prior to its receipt

from another Party and not subject to a requirement ofconfidentiality

b ormation which is obtained from a third person who insofar as is

known to the Party is not prohibited from transmitting the information to

the Party by a contractual legal or fiduciary obligation to the Party and

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

L
v

l

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 37 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 8

c Information which is or becomes publicly available through no fault ofthe

Party

1 11 Contract Year means atwelve consecutive month period beginning at the start

ofHE 0100 on June 1 and ending at the conclusion ofHE 2400 on May 31 of

the subsequent Calendar Year

1 12 Credit Rating means with respect to any entity the rating then assigned to

such entity s unsecured senior long term debt obligations or its long term

revenue bonds not supported by third party credit enhancements or if such

entity does not have a rating for its senior unsecured long term debt or its long

term revenue bonds then the rating ifany then assigned to such entity as an

issuer rating by S P andlor Moody s

1 13 Defaulting Party means the Party who has caused an Event of Default

1 14 Delivery Period means the period defmed in Section 2 2 ofthis Agreement

1 15 Delivery Points mean the point or points designated on Appendix A towhich

Company will deliver and at which Customer will accept Finn Energy

1 16 Early Termination Date is the date selected by the Non Defaulting Party to

terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 72 herein

1 17 Eastern Prevailing Time means the prevailing time in Columbus Ohio

118 Energy means three phase 60 cycle alternating current electric energy

expressed in KWhs

119 Event ofDefault means those events by the Defaulting Party as set forth in

Article 7 ofthis Agreement which give the Non Defaulting Party the right to

terminate this Agreement or exercise other remedies available under this

Agreement or at law or in equity

1 20 FERC means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

1 21 Firm Energy means Energy that Company is required by this Agreement to sell

and deliver and that Customer is required by this Agreement to purchase and

receive in each case without curtailment or interruption except as provided in

Sections 8 1 and 82 hereof unless relieved oftheir respective obligations

without liability by Force Majeure but in the case ofForce Majeure only to the

extent that and for the period during which either Party s performance is

prevented by Force Majeure Firm Energy shall be provided in accordance with

the Transmission Provider s FERC approved tariffs Market Rules and

Procedures

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

1

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 38 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 9

1 22 Force Majeure means an event or circumstance subject to the limitations set

forth below that prevents one Party from performing its obligations under this

Agreement which event or circumstance was not anticipated as ofthe Effective

Date ofthis Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of or the

result ofthe negligence of the Claiming Party and which by the exercise of

due diligence the Claiming Party is unable to overcome or avoid or cause to be

avoided Force Majeure shall not be based on i the loss ofany load by

Customer ii Customer s inability economically to use or resell the Full

Requirements Electric Service contracted for hereunder iii the loss or failure

ofCompany s Generation Resources or iv Company s ability to resell the

Full Requirements Electric Service at aprice greater than the pricing set forth

herein

123 Full Requirements Electric Service means the supply ofFirm Energy

Company is required to supply to the Customer at the Delivery Points as the

same may fluctuate in real time to serve Customer s Retail Load together with

all associated generation related services as more fully described in Article 3

and Appendix C ofthis Agreement

124 Generation Resource means the generation assets owned by Company which

as ofthe Effective Date ofthis Agreement consist ofthe Donald C Cook

Nuclear Plant Units 1 and 2 the Rockport Plant Units 1 and 2 the Tanners

Creek Plant Units 1 through 4 and various hydroelectric facilities the

Company s share of any jointly owned units long term capacity purchases by

the Company and all generating plants ofco generators qualifying facilities

and independent power producers that are not owned by the Company but that

produce electric power and sell it to the Company The individual elements of

Generation Resources are expected to change during the Term ofthis

Agreement but the Company shall maintain sufficient Generation Resources to

meet reliably its load obligations as apublic utility during the Term of this

Agreement

125 Good Utility Practice means any of the practices methods techniques and

standards including the practices methods techniques and standards approved

by asignificant portion of the electric power generation industry the

Transmission Provider andorNERC that in the exercise ofreasonable

judgment in light ofthe facts known or that should reasonably have been known

at the time adecision was made and having due regard for among other things

contractual obligations applicable laws and equipment manufacturer s

recommendations could have been expected to accomplish the desired result in

a manner consistent with good business practices reliability safety and

expedition Good Utility Practice is not intended to be limited to the optimum

practice method technique or standard to the exclusion of all others but rather

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 n

l

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 39 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 10

to be a range ofpossible practices methods techniques or standards within

which I M shall conduct its activities under this Agreement

1 26 KW means kilowatt

1 27 KWh means kilowatt hour

1 28 Letter s of Credit means one or more irrevocable transferable standby letters

ofcredit issued by a U S commercial bank or a foreign bank with aU S branch

with such bank having aCredit Rating ofat least A from S P or A3 from

Moody s in a form and from a bank acceptable to the Company Costs ofa

Letter ofCredit shall be borne by the applicant for such Letter of Credit

1 29 Load Serving Entity means any entity or the duly designated agent ofsuch an

entity i serving end users within the Transmission Provider s transmission

service area and ii that has been granted the authority or has an obligation

pursuant to state or local law regulation or franchise to sell electric energy to

end users located within the Transmission Provider s transmission service area

1 30 Losses means any transmission loss transformation loss sub transmission

andor distribution losses incurred in providing Full Requirements Electric

Service hereunder provided however that Losses shall only include losses

incurred between the sources ofEnergy and the Delivery Points In no case

shall Losses include losses that may be incurred from the Delivery Points to the

ultimate retail customers

1 31 Market Rules and Procedures means the market rules manuals and

procedures adopted by the Transmission Provider as may be amended from

time to time and as administered by the Transmission Provider to govern

operations within the Transmission Provider s transmission service area

1 32 Monthly Charges means the monthly charges set out in Article 4 ofthis

Agreement

1 33 Moody s means Moody s Investors Service Inc and its successors

134 MW means Megawatt

135 MWh means Megawatt hour

1 36 NERC means the North American Electric Reliability Council

137 Network Integration Transmission Service or NITS means fIrm transmission

service as set forth in the Transmission Provider s GATT that provides for

delivery ofFirm Energy to the Delivery Points

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 40 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 11

138 Non Defaulting Party means the Party that has not caused an Event ofDefault

1 39 Normal Load Growth means the future projected load growth as measured by

Customer s hourly peak demand in the current Contract Year predicted by the

methodbelow that yields the higher value a the maximum annual peak
demand over a60 minute interval in any ofthe previous three 3 Contract

Years times 1 04 or b the maximum annual peak demand over a60 minute

interval in any ofthe previous three 3 Contract Years plus five thousand

5 000 kilowatts Load growth that occurs as a result ofCustomer annexing

territory that Company serves at retail shall not be treated as load growth for

purposes ofthis definition but such annexed load shall be served under this

Agreement

140 OATT means the Transmission Provider s Open Access Transmission Tariffon

file at FERC

141 Performance Assurance means collateral in the form ofeither cash Letter s

ofCredit or other security acceptable to the Company

142 PJM means PlM Interconnection LLC

143 Related Documents means either collectively or individually the

Interconnection and Local Delivery Services Agreement the PlM Open Access

Transmission Tariff the PlM Operating Agreement the PlM Reliability

Agreement the PlM West Reliability Agreement and any other applicable PlM

Market Rules And Procedures

1 44 Retail Load means Energy metered at the Delivery Points to meet the

requirements of Customer s end use customers including Customer s own end

use for such things as street lighting and municipal buildings located within the

franchised service territory that Customer has astatutory or contractual right or

obligation to serve

1 45 S P means Standard Poor s Rating Group adivision ofMcGraw Hill Inc

146 Term is defined in Section 2 1 ofthis Agreement

1 47 Transmission Provider means the entity or entities transmitting or transporting

the Firm Energy and responsible for providing Ancillary Services associated

with the delivery ofFull Requirements Electric Service from the Generation

Resources to the Delivery Points The Transmission Provider as ofthe

Effective Date ofthis Agreement is PlM

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 41 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 12

ARTICLE 2 TERM SERVICE ANDDELIVERY PROVISIONS

2 1 Term The Term ofthis Agreement shall begin as ofthe Effective Date and extend

through and include the end ofthe Delivery Period Whenever the Term ofthis

Agreement ends the applicable provisions ofthis Agreement shall continue in effect for

one year in accordance with Article 16 11 Survival or by their own terms or to the

extent necessary to provide for final accounting billing including any true up billing

provided for in this Agreement billing adjustments resolution ofany billing disputes

realization ofany collateral or other security set off malpayments or payments

pertaining to liability and indemnification obligations arising from acts or events that

occurred in connection with this Agreement during the Term

2 2 Delivery Period

a The Delivery Period shall commence on July 1 2006 and extend through May 31

2026 from HE 0100 through 2400 Eastern Prevailing Time unless i this Agreement

is canceled earlier in accordance with Sections 2 2b or 2 2 c hereof in which event

the Delivery Period shall end as of2400 Eastern Prevailing Time on the date the

notice provided for in Sections 2 2b or 2 2 c becomes effective or ii an Early

Termination Date becomes effective in accordance with the provisions of Article Tof

this Agreement in which event the Delivery Period shall end as of2400 Eastern

Prevailing Time on the Early Termination Date

b Customer may cancel this Agreement prior to the end ofthe Delivery Period

effective on May 31 2019 or onMay 31 ofany year thereafter through 2025 by

delivering to Company not less than seven7 years prior to June 1 ofany ofthose

years written notice ofCustomer s intention to cancel this Agreement For example

providing notice ofcancellationbefore June 1 2012 shall terminate this Agreement

as ofMay 31 2019

c With six 6 months advance written notice either Party may cancel this Agreement

prior to the end ofthe Delivery Period if aMaterial Impact occurs as a result of any

of the following

i The sale transfer or permanent shut down ofCook Unit 1 Cook Unit 2 or the

Company s net share ofRockport Unit 1 or Rockport Unit 2 determined as of

the Effective Date ofthis Agreement

ii A merger or consolidation of the Company with another entity the acquisition

ofthe Company by another entity achange ofcontrol of the Company pursuant

to which an entity acquires 50 or more ofthe voting stock ofthe Company or

the acquisition of another entity by the Company or

iii A change in the AEP Interconnection Agreement

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 42 of 102

lhalberstadt
Highlight

lhalberstadt
Sticky Note
Proposed change: four (4)

lhalberstadt
Highlight

lhalberstadt
Sticky Note
Proposed change:  2015



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 13

Material Impact means an increase of at least thirty fivepercent 35 in Company s

annual costs per MWh as determined pursuant to Appendix B from one Calendar

Year to the next Calendar Year

d Any notice given under Section 22 b or 22 c of this Agreement for any reason

shall irrevocably terminate or cancel forever both this Agreement and any obligation

onthe Company s part to provide service to Customer under this Agreement

Customer further expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Customer waives any

and all rights to raise in any forum a claim that the Company must provide service to

Customer on the basis of

i any terms or provisions ofthis Agreement once this Agreement is terminated or

cancelled

ii any previous agreements between the Customer and the Company including

but not limited to any previous electric service agreements any settlement

agreements resolving FERC proceedings or any settlement agreements

resolving any state or federal court suits including the antitrust suits filed by

Customer and others in the U S District Court for the Northern District of

Indiana in Docket Nos 74 72 75 210 77 210 79 43 or

iii any FERC tariffs or court orders in existence as ofthe Effective Date ofthis

Agreement

Customer expressly acknowledges that Customer also waives any right to request

vacaturofthe order ofdismissal or toreinstitute proceedings in the antitrust suits

filed in US District Court for the Northern District ofIndiana

2 3 Plannin2

a TheParties understand and agree that as aresult ofthis Agreement the Company

will plan to provide Full Requirements Electric Service to Customer during the Term

of this Agreement In recognitionofthis fact the Parties have entered into this long

term Agreement In order for the Company to continue to plan to serve the Customer

beyond the end ofthe Delivery Period the Parties understand and agree that absent a

written mutual agreement to the contrary the Parties will need to negotiate and

execute a new agreement for anew delivery period extending beyond the last day of

the Term ofthis Agreement at least eight 8 years before the end ofthe Delivery

Period

b At the end ofthe Term ofthis Agreement the Company s obligation to serve

Customerunder this Agreement shall terminate and Customer expressly

acknowledges that the Customer waives any and all rights to raise in any forum a

claim that the Company must provide service to Customer onthe basis of

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006
Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 43 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 14

i any terms orprovisions ofthis Agreement

ii any previous agreements between the Customer and the Company including

but not limited to any previous electric service agreements any settlement

agreements resolving FERC proceedings or any settlement agreements

resolving any state or federal court suits including the antitrust suits filed by

Customer and others in the US District Court for the Northern District of

Indiana in Docket Nos 74 72 75 210 77 210 7943 or

iii any FERC tariffs or court orders in existence as ofthe Effective Date ofthis

Agreement

Customer expressly acknowledges that Customeralso waives any right to request

vacaturofthe order ofdismissal or to reinstitute proceedings in the antitrust suits

filed in US District Court for the Northern District ofIndiana

c In order to allow Company to plan to meet Customer s Retail Load Customer agrees

to provide the Company by June 1 ofeach Calendar Year during the Term ofthis

Agreement a forecast ofCustomer s expected Retail Load for the following eight

Calendar Years

24 Deliverv Points The Delivery Points for the Full Requirements Electric Service to be

provided hereunder are set forth on Appendix A In coordination with the Transmission

Provider if necessary and subject to the execution ofany necessary agreements the

Parties may mutually agree to add or delete Delivery Points and to make other changes

regarding Delivery Points Consent to changes regarding Delivery Points shall notbe

unreasonably withheld Whenever there is any change in Delivery Points Appendix A

hereto automatically shall be amended to reflect such change and when necessary be

submitted to the FERC

ARTICLE 3 SALE AND PURCHASE

3 1 Full ReQuirements Service

a During the Delivery Period Company shall sell and deliver and Customer shall

receive and purchase Full Requirements Electric Service sufficient to serve

Customer s Retail Load except as otherwise provided herein As aprovider ofFull

Requirements Electric Service Company is solely responsible for satisfying all

requirements and paying all costs incurred or to be incurred to provide Full

Requirements Service and Customer shall pay for such Full Requirements Electric

Service as provided in Article 4 ofthis Agreement Full Requirements Electric

Service includes all generation related services and schedules associated with Full

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 r7

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 44 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 15

Requirements Electric Service as more fully identified in Appendix C ofthis

Agreement

b Appendix C delineating the respective cost responsibilities of Company and

Customer for generation related and transmission related services and schedules

respectively is based upon the current PlM Operating Agreement and PlM OATT

and reflects the Company s current accounting for generation related services and

schedules which are collected through the cost ofservice formulas set forth in

Appendix B hereto As either i schedules and services are added deleted or

changed in those agreements and tariffs ofthe Transmission Provider or in other

documents governing the provision ofand charges for services required in connection

with Full Requirements Electric Service or ii the accounting for such charges is

changed the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to determine consistent with the

principles underlying Appendix C which new or changed schedules and services are

predominantly generation related and therefore shall be included in Full

Requirements Electric Service and which are predominantly transmission related and

therefore shall be the responsibility ofCustomer Appendices B and C shall

automatically be amended in a prompt manner to incorporate such changes as are

mutually agreed by the Parties and when necessary submitted to the FERC The

Parties shall cooperate in good faith to ensure that irrespective of changes in the

mechanisms for recovery ofcosts by the Transmission Provider and changes in

accounting the respective cost responsibilities ofCompany and Customer shall

remain governed by this Agreement Inno event shall the costs of aparticular service

or schedule associated with Full Requirements Electric Service be recovered twice

frorn Customer through its inclusion both in the costs used to derive the Full

Requirements Electric Service unit rates pursuant to Appendix B and also ill the costs

in Appendix C for which Customer is responsible

c Company understands that the Customer s Retail Loadmay change from time to

time Except as specifically provided herein at no time during the Delivery Period

shall Customeruse either i newly constructed or purchased generation resources or

ii new power purchase agreements to reduce Customer s Retail Load Company is

responsible for Full Requirements Electric Service regardless of changes in Retail

Load arising from daily fluctuations increased or decreased usage extreme weather

andor similar events provided however that the Parties agree that this Agreement

does not obligate the Company to sell to Customer or the Customer to purchase from

Company at the rates set forth herein Full Requirements Electric Service for any

additions to Retail Load that exceed Normal Load Growth

d To the extent that Customer s Retail Load grows at a rate in excess ofNormal Load

Growth Company and Customer agree to meet to discuss whether such excess Retail

Load could be served under this Agreement or whether changes could be made to

this Agreement to address how Customer s Retail Loadthat exceeds Normal Load

Growth can be met under this Agreement provided however neither Party shall be

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 n

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 45 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 16

required to accept a change with which it in its sole judgment disagrees Ifthe

Parties do not agree how Customer s Retail Load that exceeds Normal Load Growth

can be metunder this Agreement then Customer shall have the right to find alternate

supplies to serve such excess Retail Load including the use ofNew Generation in

accordance with this Article With appropriate compensation Company will

cooperate with Customer with respect to the integration of such alternative supplies

into the total supply ofCustomer

e If during the Term of this Agreement one or both units of Company s Cook Nuclear

Plant experiences an outage that is anticipated to extend longer than three 3 months

and the Parties agree in writing that a reduction in Customer s Full Requirements
Electric Service wouldbe mutually beneficial then Customer may reduce Customer s

Full Requirements Electric Service for the duration ofthe outage

3 2 Transmission Service Ancillary Services and Local Facilities Service

a Commencing simultaneously with the Delivery Period and ending no later than the

end ofthe Term of this Agreement Company shall arrange for Network Integration

Transmission Service NITS and Ancillary Services for Customer s Retail Load

and shall be responsible during the Delivery Period for the provision of all such t

services Customer shall be responsible for paying all NITS and any other related

Transmission Provider charges including but not limited to administrative fees that

the Company incurs but does not record on its books in generation related accounts

as identified onAppendix C Beginning July 1 2006 and throughout the Term of

this Agreement Customer agrees to reimburse the Company for all NITS and any

other related Tfansinissioli Provider charges that the Company incurs on the

Customer s behalf as well as for all charges for Ancillary Services the Company

incurs but does not record on its books in generation related accounts These charges

shall be billedby Company to Customer using the same rates and billing determinants

that would be used by the Transmission Provider to bill Customer if Customer were

separately billed by the Transmission Provider Company agrees not to oppose the

Customer s right to initiate orparticipate in any FERC proceeding regarding PlM or

NITS charges Inno event shall the costs of aparticular service or schedule

associated with Full Requirements Electric Service be recovered twice from

Customer through its inclusion both in the costs used to derive the Full Requirements

Electric Service unit rates pursuant to Appendix B and also in the costs in

Appendix C for which Customer is responsible

b Prior to the beginning ofthe Delivery Period Customer agrees to execute and during

the Term ofthis Agreement Customer agrees to maintain an Interconnection and

Local Delivery Service Agreement with the Company Beginning July 1 2006 and

throughout the Term ofthis Agreement Customer further agrees to pay all charges

related to the Interconnection and Local Delivery Service Agreement to Company or

to the Transmission Provider acting as abilling and collections agent for the AEP

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 q

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 46 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 17

Operating Companies if the Customer Company and Transmission Provider so

agree The services provided under the Interconnection and Local Delivery Service

Agreement are sometimes referred to in this Agreement as Local Facilities Service

3 3 Existin2 Generation As ofthe Effective Date ofthis Agreement Customer has no

existing generating facilities behind the meters that will measure Customer s Billing

Demand and Billing Energy under this Agreement

3 4 New Generation

a Subject to all applicable interconnection and siting requirements and any other

applicable requirements Customer may at any time after the Effective Date ofthis

Agreement construct behind the Company s meters new generating facilities

including but not limited to generation facilities to provide backup standby or

emergency power New Generation The output ofany New Generation shall be

separately metered to allow Company to determine Customer s total Retail Load

unaffected by New Generation Unless Customer designates aNew Generation

facility Load Serving Generation pursuantto the process set forth in Section 3 Ab

ofthis Agreement New Generation shall be deemed to be Non Load Serving

Generation and shall be subject to the provisions ofSection 3A c ofthis

Agreement

b If the following conditions are met then New Generation built by Customer after the

Effective Date ofthis Agreement may be used to serve up to and including ten

percent 10 ofCustomer s maximum demand established since the beginning of

the Delivery Period Load Serving Generation

i Customer shall provide Company with no less than two 2 years advance

written notice ofthe in service date of any Load Serving Generation it

intends to build

ii Any Load Serving Generation built by Customer shall be capable of

producing sufficient capacity and energy to serve the amount ofRetail

Load not to exceed ten percent 10 ofCustomer s maximumdemand

established since the beginning of the Delivery Period that Customer

designates to be served by the Load Serving Generation Load

Responsibility Percentage

iii Customer s Load Responsibility Percentage shall be determined to the

nearest one tenth ofone percent 01 as ofthe in service date specified

by Customer in the notice provided under Section 3Ab i as the lower of

a the amount specified by Customer not to exceed the nameplate rating

ofthe Load Serving Generation as a percentage ofCustomer s maximum

demand established since the beginning ofthe Delivery Period orb

10

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 47 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 18

iv Once Customer provides Company with written notice of its intention to

build Load Serving Generation then as ofthe in service date specified in

Customer s notice Customer shall be responsible for serving the Load

Responsibility Percentage determined in accordance with Section

3Ab iii but not future load growth Consequently Customer s Load

Responsibility Percentage will be adjusted to the nearest one tenth ofone

percent 0 1 on an annual basis two 2 months prior to the beginning
ofthe next Contract Year in accordance with the following example

Customerbuilds Load Serving Generation with a five 5 MW nameplate

rating at a time when its maximum demand is one hundred 100 MWs

Customer s Load Responsibility Percentage is five percent 5 Over

the next year Customer s monthly maximumpeak demand grows to one

hundred ten 110 MWs The Load Responsibility Percentage shall be

adjusted to four and five tenths percent 4 5 calculated by dividing five

5 MWs by one hundred ten 110 MWs

v Beginning on the in service date specified in Customer s notice of its

intention to build Load Serving Generation regardless of the actual in

service date ofthe Load Serving Generation Customer shall be

responsible for serving the Load Responsibility Percentage ofits Retail

Load i e gross load in each hour throughout the remaining Term of

this Agreement and Company shall no longerhave any obligation to serve

that Load ResponsibilityPercentage of Customer s Retail Load under this

Agreement If Customer is unable to supply its Load Responsibility

p entage i il oad from its Load Serving Generation Customer

shall supply such load from otller sOllrces inchiding the niarket With

appropriate compensation Companywill cooperate with Customer with

respect to the integration of such other sources into the total supply of

Customer and

vi Beginning onthe in service date specified in Customer s notice ofits

intention to build Load Serving Generation the grant ofany and all rights

interests and obligations to Company to supply the Load Responsibility
Percentage ofCustomer s Retail Load under this Agreement shall cease

and Company and Customer shall cooperate in advance to make all

necessary filings with the Transmission Provider and to perform all other

acts necessary to transfer all rights interests and obligations associated

with the Load Responsibility Percentage back to Customer

c Any New Generation builtby Customer after the Effective Date ofthis Agreement

that is not designated as Load Serving Generation under Section 3A b shall be

deemed to be non load serving generation Non Load Serving Generation So

long as adequate metering is maintained on the Non Load Serving Generation to

measure hourly metered output in KWh Customer may run its Non Load Serving

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 1

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 48 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 19

Generation at any time during the Delivery Period provided however that Non

Load Serving Generation shall not reduce Retail Load or the amount ofFull

Requirements Electric Service that Customer is obligated to purchase from Company

under this Agreement The metered output of Customer s Non Load Serving

Generation shall be added to the Customer s metered load to determine Customer s

Billing Demand and Billing Energy total Retail Load The Parties agree that the

sole compensation that Customer shall receive from Company for running Non Load

Serving Generation built to provide backup standby or emergency power shall be a

credit netted against Customer s Monthly Bill calculated by taking an amount equal
to i the metered KWh as measured each hour by the metering onthe Non Load

Serving Generation during the preceding month adjusted for losses times ii the

Real Time Locational Marginal Price LMP in the AEP Load Zone AEP Zonal

LMP for each suchhour less the P lM Balancing Operating Reserve charges for

such hour Customer may sell energy andor capacity from other Non Load Serving

Generation i e Non Load Serving Generation that was notbuilt to provide backup

standby andor emergency power into PlM in accordance with applicable Market

Rules and Procedures or under abilateral agreement with Company or a thirdparty

35 Oualifvinl Facility Purchases

a So long as Customer is receiving Full Requirements Electric Service from Company

Company shall be obligated to purchase the electrical output from any duly licensed

and properly operating Qualifying Facility connected to Customer but only so long

as Company has such obligation pursuant to the Public Utility Regulatory Policies

A t f 1978 asamended PURPA The defInition ofQualifying Facility shall be

as contamed in puRJAanifthe FPA

b Company shall apply the monthly billing amounts set forth in Article 4 to the

combined Full Requirements Electric Service supplied by Company and the amounts

delivered by the Qualifying Facility to the Customer If Customer pays the

Qualifying Facility directly for such energy Company shall provide acredit equal to

Company s avoided cost rate at the rate that Company would have paid to the

Qualifying Facility if Company had directly purchased the Qualifying Facility output

c Customer agrees that Customer will not directly or indirectly engage in any activity

to encourage or promote the construction or installation ofa Qualifying Facility

except as otherwise required by ornecessary to comply with applicable law and shall

not itself install purchase or operate aQualifying Facility during the Term of this

Agreement

d Customer shall notify Company ofthe proposed connection ofany Qualifying

Facility to Customer s system NotifIcation shall be in writing as soonas practical

but at least ninety 90 days prior to the connection ofthe Qualifying Facility

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 49 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 20

3 6 Retail Choice

a The Parties expressly recognize that retail choice may occur in Customer s service

area during the Term ofthis Agreement Inorder to enable Customer to compete to

retain existing customers in the event retail choice is mandated in Customer s service

area by state or federal statutes regulations orregulatory agencies or in the event

other power suppliers plan to make adirect connection to one or more retail

customers ofCustomer the Parties agree as follows Ifretail choice is available to a

customer or an aggregated group of customers or apotential customer of Customer

Customer may negotiate a price with Company for the retention ofsuch customer or

group ofcustomers or to obtain new customers provided however that if Customer

and Company are unable to agree uponaprice that retains or acquires such

customer s then Customer may seek to obtain an alternate source ofpower supply

including the use ofNew Generation which Company shall have the right oflast

refusal to match within one 1 Business Day ofbeing officially notified by

Customer Such alternate source ofpower can only be made available to that specific

customer or aggregated groups ofcustomers for the defmed period ofthe contract for

alternate power supply and shall not be made available to other Retail Load of

Customeror to displace other purchases

b Mandated by state or federal statutes regulations or regulatory agencies includes

the following scenarios i state or federal statutes or regulations or regulatory

agencies provide for retail choice by Customer s Retail Load as part of a larger retail

choice program in either apilot program or permanent program or ii Customer is

exempt from such state or federal statutes or regulations but retail customers of

Customei oy voteor otlier legallfenforceable nglif fequite iliatCtistomerofferthem

the same provisions and rights contained in astatewide retail choice program

3 7 Renewable Portfolio Standards

a During the Term ofthis Agreement if the Company is required as aresult offederal

or state laws rules or regulations to meet the requirements of any renewable

portfolio standards the Company agrees to meet those requirements with regard to

Customer s Retail Load In no event shall the Company be obligated to meet any

renewable portfolio standards imposed upon or enacted by Customer that are more

stringent than those standards that the Company is required to meet

b In the event that Customer but not Company is required as a result of federal or

state laws rules or regulations to meet the requirements ofany renewable portfolio

standards the Company and Customer agree to meet and discuss how such

requirements are to be met

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 Jr1

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 50 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 21

4 1

ARTICLE 4 MONTHLY RATES AND BILLING

General Principles Reeardine Monthlv Charees for Full Requirements Electric

Service The Monthly Charges forFull Requirements Electric Service supplied to

Customer by Company hereunder during the Delivery Period ofthis Agreement shall

include a Generation Demand Charge a Generation Energy Charge collectively the

Generation Demand and Generation Energy Charges and aGeneration Fuel Charge

all calculated in accordance with the terms ofthis Article and subject to all other terms

and conditions contained in this Agreement For each Calendar Year the Generation

Demand and Generation Energy Charges for which Customer is ultimately responsible

shall be determined using data from Company s FERC Form 1 for that Calendar Year

and the Return on Common Equity from December ofthe preceding Calendar Year as

specified in Section 4 6b Because ofthe time lag in availability ofthe FERGForm 1

data Generation Demand and Generation Energy Charges will initially be assessed based

on estimated monthly rates and a true up will subsequently be conducted for each

Calendar Year as provided in Section 43 hereof The Generation Energy Charge shall

exclude fuel related costs All fuel related costs shall be recovered through the

Generation Fuel Charge which shall be trued up to more current actual fuel related

costs by means ofthe Fuel Adjustment Charge set forth in Section 4 5 hereof The

monthly rates used to calculate the Generation Demand Charge Generation Energy

Charge and Generation Fuel Charge for Full Requirements Electric Service shall be

determined pursuant to the cost of service formulas set forth in Appendix B hereto

These formulas will be used for both estimated and actual trued up rates and charges

4 2 Estimat d Generation Demand Generation Ener2V and Generation Fuel Charees

Estimated monthly rates shilfbe deveI6pea foi each CoiifracfYear Tlieestimalea

monthly rates used to calculate the Generation Demand Charge Generation Energy

Charge and Generation Fuel Charge shall be determined annually by the Company

pursuant to Appendix B prior to the 31st day ofMay be provided to the Customer for its

review by June 1 and be made effective as ofJune 1 i e at the commencement of each

Contract Year The estimated monthly rates in effect during each Contract Year shall be

based upon the cost incurred in providing Full Requirements Electric Service for the

most recent Calendar Year for which FERC Form 1 data is available Customer shall

have the rights set forth in Section 44 ofthis Agreement regarding the calculation of

these estimated monthly rates and the resulting estimated Monthly Charges

For example in Calendar Year 2007 for the first five months the estimated monthly rates

used to bill Customer will be based upon Calendar Year2005 FERC Form 1 data and

will be the same as the estimated monthly rates used in the latter portion ofCalendar

Year 2006 beginning on June 1 2007 the estimated monthly rates will be based upon

Calendar Year 2006 FERC Form 1 data and will remain in effect for the remainder of

the 2007 2008 Contract Year and all charges based onthese estimated rates for

Calendar Year2007 will be subject to true up ofthe Generation Demand Rate and

Generation Energy Rate in 2008 pursuant to Section 43

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

I U

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 51 of 102



L

Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 22

4 3 True Up of Generation Demand and Generation EnerlV Chan es Because the

Generation Demand and Generation Energy Charges initially collected during a Calendar

Year will be the product of estimated rates based on data from previous Calendar Years

the Generation Demand and Generation Energy Charges shall be adjusted or trued up

based upon i FERC Form 1 cost data from that Calendar Year and ii the Return on

Common Equity calculated using data from December of the previous Calendar Year as

specified in Section 4 6b The true up for Generation Demand and Generation Energy

Charges shall be conducted by Company prior to May 31st of each CalendarYear once

the FERC Form 1 data for the prior CalendarYear is available and shall be

accomplished by recalculating the sums due to Company from Customer for service

provided during the prior Calendar Year The difference between the sum ofthe Monthly

Charges originally billed to Customer for service provided during the Calendar Year

based on the estimated monthly rates and the sum ofthe Monthly Charges for which

Customer is ultimately responsible shall be billed to Customer or credited to Customer

as appropriate in twelve 12 equal monthly amounts beginning with the month ofJune

ofthe year immediately following the Calendar Year for which the true up is

calculated unless otherwise agreed by the Parties The amount to be billed or credited

for any such over collections or under collections will include interest determined in

accordance with Section 3519a ofFERC s regulations charged or applied from the date

of original payment to the date when the over collections or under collections are paidi or

credited but excluding the date paid or credited Customer may unilaterally elect to

prepay any amounts owed to Company and Company may unilaterally elect to credit in

advance any amounts due to Customer and any suchprepayments or advance credits

shall be reflected in any interest calculations hereunder Customer shall have the rights

n
setfQrtb ID S QtiQ1 1fthi Agr p1 yeg ding the calculation ofthe trued up

Monthly Charges

n
n un

u un
n

For example the true up ofGeneration Demand and Generation Energy Charges

initially collected for service provided during Calendar Year 2007 shall be conductedby

Company by May 31 2008 The trued up charges shall be calculated using i 2007

FERC Form I cost data and ii the Return on Common Equity calculated using data

from December 2006 The difference between the sum ofthe Monthly Charges

originally billed to Customer for service provided during 2007 based on two different

sets ofestimated rates for portions of two ContractYears and the sum ofthe trued up

Monthly Charges for Calendar Year 2007 will be divided into twelve 12 equal amounts

and billed to Customer or credited to Customer as appropriate and with interest in

invoices sent to Customer from July 2008 through June 2009 covering services provided

during June 2008 through May 2009 unless otherwise agreed by the Parties or unless a

full prepayment is made by Customer or a full advance credit is refunded by Company

4 4 Review Process Each time monthly rates are determined annually by the Company

whether to use in estimated billings to Customer during the upcoming Contract Year or

to true up the Generation Demand and Generation Energy Charges for the preceeding

Calendar Year the following information shall be provided to Customer by Company on

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

J

m

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 52 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 23

or before June 1 i the Company s FERC Form 1 Report ii the calculation of the

monthly rates and iii workpapers showing the source of all data utilized in the

calculation ofthe monthly rates and any other supporting documentation The accuracy

of the Company s calculations as well as the data used in those calculations including

FERC Form Idata shall be subject to review and adjustment in accordance with the

following procedure

a Customer shall have until September 30 to review the information provided by the

Company During that time the Customer may ask the Company questions but such

questions shall be limited to determining if the Company properly applied the cost of

service formulas in Appendix B if the data used in Appendix B was proper and if

the Company s calculations wereconsistent with this Agreement The Company

shall respond to such questions within fifteen 15 Business Days

b Ifthe Company and Customer do not resolve any dispute as to the appropriateness of

the data used by the Company or the application ofthe cost of service formulas in

Appendix B by September 30 Customermay file acomplaint at FERC regarding the

accuracy ofthe Company s calculations or the data used in those calculations

including FERC Form 1 data or both The Parties agree that the complaint

proceeding will be limited to determining if the Company properly applied the cost

of service formulas in Appendix B if the data used in Appendix B was proper and if

the Company s calculations were consistent with this Agreement The Company

agrees to bear the burden ofproof regarding these matters in any such complaint

proceeding The refund obligation will extend for the entire Contract Year or

Calendar Yearthat is the subject ofreview as a result of the complaint proceeding

wHnCompanyliavrng no nglifl fseeKsuspensibu oftheTefundeffective date

c The Monthly Charges being collected from Customer by Company under this

Agreement shall be subject to adjustment until the latest of i September 30 ofeach

year during the Term ofthis Agreement if at such time there has beenno complaint

filed at FERC under this Section ii the fmal resolution ofany complaint filed

pursuant to this Section or iii the day any required corrections have been made by

the Company The Company shall make any necessary corrections as soon as

possible and shall make any adjustments to Customer s bill on the next monthly

billing

45 Fuel Adjustment Charee Customer shall pay Company amonthly Fuel Adjustment

Charge determined pursuant to the cost of service formulas set forth in Appendix B

hereto The base cost offuel expressed in dollars per KWh to be used in the Fuel

Adjustment Charge shall equal the then applicable Generation Fuel Rate Customer shall

be billed aFuel Adjustment Charge each month for the energy delivered in the preceding

month based upon estimated fuel charges in excess ofthe Generation Fuel Rate or if

applicable shall be credited for the amount by which the estimated fuel charges are lower

than the Generation Fuel Rate Any difference between the estimated fuel charges and

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006
Effective July 1 2006 tD

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 53 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 24

the fuel charges based on actual fuel costs shall be billed or credited to Customer on the

first bill rendered after such actual fuel costs have been determined Company shall use

reasonable diligence when estimating monthly fuel charges so as to avoid any significant

difference between estimated and actual monthly fuel charges to Customer

4 6 Cost of Service Formulas The cost of service formulas set forth in Appendix B were

designed by mutual agreement primarily to use the Company s FERC Form 1 costs

Certain costs that either are not reflected in the Company s FERC Form 1 or that the

Parties agreed werenot representative ofthe Company s costs were determined by

negotiation The specific elements ofthe cost of service formulas set forth below were

negotiated as an integrated and integral part ofthis Agreement

a For purposes ofcalculating the Company s rate base used in Appendix B the Parties

agree that the Company will include one hundred percent 100 ofits expenditures

for Pollution Control Facilities and Fuel Conversion Facilities as defined in Section

35 25 ofthe FERC s regulations recorded onthe Company s books and records as

construction work in progress CWIP and fifty percent 50 ofits expenditures

for all other CWIP

b The Return on CommonEquity which will be used to compute the composite costof

capital used in AppendixB shall be determined annually by taking the average ofthe

daily Moody s Long Term Baa Corporate Bond Index for the month ofDecember of

the preceding year and adding 535 basis points 535 percentage points For

estimated Monthly Charges the composite cost of capital and estimated Monthly

uCharges shall be developed using the Appendix B formulas and data from the FERC

F ormTforthe CalendafYeart11aCeiiasWitntllesame moniliofDecember aswas

used to determine the Return on Common Equity For example by June 1 2008 the

composite cost ofcapital shall be determined using the Return on Common Equity

from December 2007 and other capital cost data from the FERC Form 1 for Calendar

Year 2007 The resulting composite cost ofcapital shall be used in the Appendix B

formulas together with other FERC Form 1 data for Calendar Year 2007 to determine

the estimated Generation Demand and Generation Energy Charges and the

Generation Fuel Rate for the Contract Year beginning June 1 2008 For true ups of

the Generation Demand and Generation Energy Charges the FERC Form 1 data for

the CalendarYear being trued up shall be used in conjunction with the Return on

Common Equity from December of the prior Calendar Year For example once

2008 FERC Form 1 data are available in 2009 such data shall be used to compute the

2008 composite cost ofcapital using the Return on Common Equity from December

2007 That composite cost ofcapital will be used with other 2008 FERC Form 1 data

to determine the trued up Generation Demand and Generation Energy Charges for

Calendar Year 2008 So long as the Return on Common Equity computed pursuant

to this Section 4 6b is neither lower than 9 0 nor higher than 18 0 the Parties

agree that the Return on Common Equity used to compute the composite cost of

capital in Appendix B shall not be subject to change under Sections 205 or 206 ofthe

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006
Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 54 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 25

Federal Power Act FPA absent the mutual written consent ofthe Parties In the

event that the Return on Common Equity produced as a result of the calculation

provided for herein is either below 9 0 or above 18 0 either Party may seek

FERC review ofthe Return on Common Equity value under the just and reasonable

standard of Sections 205 and 206 ofthe FPA

c The Company s Member Load Ratio share ofnet revenue from deliveries to non

associated companies by the AEP Operating Companies System Sales shall be

shared fifty percent 50 by Customer and fifty percent 50 by Company with

the Customer s share reducing the Company s total production cost as shown on

Appendix B For purposes ofthis Section 4 6 c net revenue refers to the revenue

in excess ofthe full cost ofmaking such System Sales

d The Depreciation Expense used in Appendix B will be calculated using the

depreciation rates that are approved from time to time by the Michigan Public Service

Commission MPSC to record depreciation in the Company s Michigan

jurisdiction These depreciation rates are subject to periodic change at such time as

the Company has filed new depreciation rates with the MPSC and the MPSC allows

the Company to begin recording depreciation expense basedupon newly approved

depreciation rates

e TheNuclear Decommissioning expense used in Appendix B will initially be set atthe

total Company level of 40 million When the MPSC next authorizes achange in the

level ofNuclear Decommissioning Expense for the Company s Michigan retail

lstom o al Company level ofNuclear Decommissioning Expenseused in

Appendix B to calculateCusiomer irates shalfle iesefaslfllielota1 Company 1evel

authorized by the MPSC were being collected from customers in all ofthe

Company s regulatory jurisdictions This provision in no way affects Customer s

rights if any atFERC regarding nuclear decommissioning expenses The revenue

collected from Customer by means of the Monthly Charges in effectunder this

Agreement includes acomponent sufficient to recover Customer s portion of

Company s regulatory assets and unrecorded liabilities related to decommissioning

f The method set forth in Appendix B to allocate costs as production related andor

transmission related shall be used throughout the Term ofthis Agreement provided

however that to the extent that any ofthe following circumstances occur during the

Term ofthis Agreement the Parties will meet and attempt to determine amutually

agreeable modification to Appendix B i FERC determines in arulemaking

proceeding or in aproceeding regarding the Company s costs to be included in the

Transmission Provider s OATT or it is agreed in a FERC approved settlement of any

suchproceeding that items currently included in Appendix B as production related

should be treated as transmission related or ii FERC determines in arulemaking

proceeding or in a proceeding regarding the Company s costs to be included in the

Transmission Provider s OATT or it is agreed in a FERC approved settlement of any

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006
Effective July 1 2006 0jD

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 55 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 26

suchproceeding that items currently excluded from Appendix B as transmission

related should be treated as production related Ifeither or both ofthe circumstances

in this Section 4 6 foccurs and the Parties cannot agree upon amodification to

Appendix B then either Party may seek FERC review of Appendix B s treatment of

the items addressed in such proceedings under the just and reasonable standard of

Sections 205 and 206 ofthe FPA

4 7 Billin2 Demand and Ener2Y

a The monthly Billing Demand shall be the single highest 60 minute KW demand

measured during the Billing Period but not less than 400 KW

b The monthly Billing Energy shall be the total KWhs ofFirm Energy as measured

during the Billing Period

4 8 Determination ofMonthlv Bill The Monthly Bill shall set forth charges for Full

Requirements Electric Service charges for Local Facilities Service charges to reimburse

costs incurred by Company on behalfofCustomer in connection with Full Requirements

Electric Service and other charges associated with Full Requirements Electric Service

The Monthly Bill shall be the total ofthe following

1 The product ofthe Generation Demand Rate and the Billing Demand plus

2 The product ofthe Generation Energy Rate and the Billing Energy plus

3 The product1 f1he
Gene rationFJJslRaje llDJifu I3iJli1JEJ Il mY plll

4 The product of the Fuel Adjustment Charge and the Billing Energy plus

5 All applicable charges in accordance with the Interconnection and Local

Delivery Service Agreement to the extent not billed directly to the

Customer by the Transmission Provider or otherwise plus

6 All amounts due to Company for reimbursement ofcharges incurredby

Company as the NITS customer for delivery ofFull Requirements Electric

Service in accordance with the OATT or related agreements for

transmission related schedules or services for which Customer is

responsible pursuant to Section 3 2 a and Appendix C hereto to the

extent that such charges are not included in Items 1 through 5 above

lll1nus

7 All amounts due to Customer from Company pursuant to Sections 3 3 34

and 3 5 plus

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006
Effective July 1 2006

rr

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 56 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 27

8 Any applicable governmental taxes fees and assessments attributable to

Full Requirements Electric Service not included in any of the other

elements ofthe Monthly BilL

4 9 Payment Date Customer shall pay Company any amounts due and payable hereunder

on orbefore the later ofthe fifteenth 15th day of each month or the fifteenth 15th day

after receipt of invoice or if such due date is not aBusiness Day then on the next

Business Day All invoices shall be paid by electronic funds transfer or by other

mutually agreeable methodes to the account designated by the Company If all or any

part of any amount due and payable pursuant to this Agreement shall remain unpaid

thereafter interest shall thereafter accrue and be payable to Company on such unpaid

amount at a rate determined in accordance with Section 35 19a ofFERC s regulations

4 10 Payment Nettin2 Parties hereby agree that they shall discharge mutual debts and

payment obligations due and owing to each other on the same date pursuant to this

Agreement through netting in which case all amounts owed by each Party to the other

Party under this Agreement interest and payments or credits shall be netted so that only

the excess amount remaining due shall be paid by the Party who owes it All amounts

netted pursuant to Article Four shall not take into account or include any Performance

Assurance or guaranty which may be in effect to secure aParty s performanceunder this

Agreement Ifno mutual debts orpayment obligations exist and only one Party owes a

debt or obligation to the other during the monthly Billing Period that Party shall pay

such sum in full when due

4 11 Billin2 Disputes If a Party in good faith disputes an invoice the disputing Party shall

n

im1neQfatety nofify1lie otliei1artY6ftneDasls fofthe dispute and paytheundisputed

portion ofsuch invoice no later than the due date provided however with respect to any

amounts the Company passed through from the Transmission Provider to the Customer

pursuant to item 6 in Section 4 8 above the full amount ofthe disputed bill shall be paid

when due and any billing dispute shall be handled in accordance with the procedures set

forth in the OATT Upon resolution ofthe dispute any required payment shall be made

within five 5 Business Days ofsuch resolution along with any interest accrued at the

rate determined in accordance with Section 3519a ofthe FERCs regulations from and

including the due date to but excluding the date paid Inadvertent overpayments shall be

returned by the receiving Party or deducted at the option ofthe overpaying Party in

either case with interest accrued at the rate determined in accordance with Section 35 19a

ofthe FERCs regulations until the date paid or deducted from and including the date of

such overpayment to but excluding the date repaid or deducted by the party receiving

such overpayment

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006
Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 57 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 28

ARTICLE 5 TRANSMISSION PROVIDER IMPLEMENTATION

5 1 Implementation

a Company and Customer shall enter into and file with the Transmission Provider and

other applicable entities all documents necessary for the Company and the Customer

to fulfill their respective obligations to provide or take Full Requirements Electric

Service

b The Parties recognize and agree that Company is deemed to be the Customer s Load

Serving Entity for purposes ofPJM and this Agreement The Parties further

recognize and agree that the Full Requirements Electric Service to be provided

hereunder is a load obligation ofthe Company for purposes ofPJM and the AEP

Interconnection Agreement and thatth Company assumes such load obligation as

its own firm power commitment and shall retain all obligations and advantages

accruing from meeting the load during the Term ofthis Agreement At the end ofthis

Agreement the Customer shall become the Load Serving Entity and all obligations

and advantages from being the Load Serving Entity shall revert to Customer

c Each Party shall provide the other Party access to information the other Party

reasonably requests to facilitate the administration ofthis Agreement

ARTICLE 6 CREDITWORTHINESS

6 1 Financial Information If requested by aParty Party X the other Party Party Y

shall deliver i within one hundred fifty 150 days following the end ofeach fiscal

year acopy ofthe annual report containing audited consolidated mancial statements for

such fiscal year with respect to Party Y and ii within 60 days after the end ofeach ofits

first three fiscal quarters ofeach fiscal year acopy ofthe quarterly report containing

unaudited consolidated mancial statements for such fiscal quarter with respect to Party

Y to the extent that such reports are prepared in party Y s ordinary course ofbusiness on

such schedule Inall cases the statements shall be for the most recent accounting period

and shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

provided however that should any such statements not be available on a timely basis due

to a delay in preparation or certification such delay shall not be an EventofDefault so

long as Party Y diligently pursues the preparation certification and delivery ofthe

statements

6 2 Credit Assurances

a Customer represents that Customer s Charter Charter in effect as ofthe Effective

Date ofthis Agreement enables it to charge rates which together with the other

revenues produce revenues sufficient to pay maintenance expenses purchased power

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006
Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 58 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 29

expenses other operation expenses debt service on its bonds other indebtedness

liens and or charges against its revenues In connection with the foregoing

representations Company hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy ofthe relevant

portions ofCustomer s Charter Customer agrees to annually provide Company with

a copy ofthe relevant portion of its Charter by June 1 ofeach Calendar Year during

the Term ofthis Agreement if requested by Company If at any time during the

Term ofthis Agreement there are any material changes to Customer s Charter or the

rates it charges thereunder that cause the representations ofCustomer described

above to cease to be substantially accurate Customer further agrees to immediately

notify Company in writing Regardless ofwhether Customer so notifies the

Company or provides acopy ofthe relevant portions ofits Charter to Company

amiually the Customer and Company agree that if there are any material changes to

Customer s Charter or the rates it charges thereunder that cause the representations

described above to cease to be substantially accurate then the following provisions

shall immediately become operable with respect to Customer

i If at any time Company has reasonable grounds to believe that Customer s

creditworthiness orperformance under this Agreement has become

unsatisfactory Company may provide the Customer with written notice

requesting Performance Assurance in an amount determined by Company

in acommercially reasonable manner

ii Upon receipt ofsuch notice the Customer shall have three 3 Business

Days to remedy the situation by providing such Performance Assurance to

tg g llE Y
m

iii In the event that the Customer fails to provide such Performance

Assurance or other credit assurance acceptable to the Company within

three 3 Business Days ofreceipt ofnotice then anEvent ofDefault

under Article 7 shall be deemed to have occurred

b Grant ofSecuritv InterestlRemedies

i To secure its obligations under this Agreement and only to the extent

Customer delivers Performance Assurance hereunder Customer the

Pledgor hereby grants to Company the Secured Party a present and

continuing security interest in and lien on and right of setoff against

and assignment of all cash collateral and cash equivalent collateral and

any and all proceeds resulting therefrom or the liquidation thereof

whether now or hereafter held by on behalfof or for the benefit of the

Secured Party and Pledgor agrees to take such action as the Secured Party

reasonably requires in order to perfect the Secured Party s first priority

security interest in and lien on and right ofsetoff against such collateral

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 59 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 30

and any and all proceeds resulting therefrom or from the liquidation

thereof

ii Upon or any time after the occurrence or deemed occurrence and during

the continuation ofan Event ofDefault or an Early Termination Date by

Customer the Company may do anyone or more ofthe following

1 exercise any ofthe rights and remedies ofCompany with respect to

all Penormance Assurance including any such rights and remedies

under law then in effect

2 exercise its rights of setoff against any and all property of the

Customer in the possession of the Company or its agent

3 draw on any outstandmg Letter ofCredit issued for its benefit and

4 liquidate all Performance Assurance then held by or for the benefit

of Company free from any claim or right of any nature whatsoever

of the Customer including any equity or right of purchase or

redemption by the Customer

iii The Company shall apply the proceeds ofthe collateral realized upon the

exercise of any such rights or remedies to reduce the Customer s

obligations under the Agreement the Customer remaining liable for any

amounts owing to the Company after such application subject to the

GompanY sobligation toreturnany surplus proceeds remaining aftersuch

obligations are satisfied in full

c Interest Rate on Cash Amounts Held as Collateral For Performance Assurance in

the form of cashthat is held by Company pursuant to this Article Six the interest rate

will be the Federal Funds Rate minus 0 25 as from time to time in effect Federal

Funds Rate means the rate for the relevant determination date opposite the caption

Federal Funds Effective as set forth in the weekly statistical release designated as

H 15 519 published by the Board ofGovernors ofthe Federal Reserve System

Such interest shall be calculated commencing on the date Performance Assurance in

the form ofcash is received by Company but excluding the earlier of i the date

Performance Assurance in the form ofcash is returned to Customer or ii the date

Performance Assurance in the form ofcash is applied to aCustomer s obligations

pursuant to Section 62 b

d Transfer ofInterest Amount Customer shall invoice the Company monthly setting

forth the calculation ofthe interest amount due and the Company shall make

payment thereof by the later of i the third Business Day ofthe fITst month after the

last month to which such invoice relates or ii the third Business Day after the day

on which such invoice is received

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 JI

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 60 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 31

ARTICLE 7 DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

7 1 Events of Default Anyone or more ofthe following shall constitute an Event of

Default hereunder with respect to either Party the Defaulting party

a The failure to make when due any payment required pursuant to this Agreement

other than payments disputed under Article 4 if such failure is not remedied within

five 5 Business Days after written notice

b Any representation or warranty made by aParty herein is false ormisleading in ny

material respect when made or when deemed made or repeated if such failure is not

remedied within thirty 30 Business Days after written notice

c The failure by Customer to provide Performance Assurance to Company as required

under Article 6

d The failure to perform any material covenant or obligation set forth in this Agreement

except to the extent constituting a separate Event ofDefault as specified above and

except to the extent such Party s obligations to deliver or receive Firm Energy are

modified by the provisions ofArticle 8 if such failure is not remedied within five 5

Business Days after written notice or

e A Party i files apetition or otherwise commences authorizes or acquiesces in the

commencementof a proceeding or cause of action under any bankruptcy insolvency

reorganization or similar law or has any such petition filed or commenced against it

ii makes an assignmenLQLanygener larrillgeJ I1tJQ Q I f fcre it r iiD

otherwise becomes bankrupt or insolvent however evidenced iv has a liquidator

administrator receiver trustee conservator or similar official appointed with respect

to it or any substantial portion ofits property or assets or v is generally unable to

pay its debts as they fall due

7 2 Declaration of an Earlv Termination If an Event ofDefault with respect to a

Defaulting Party shall have occurred and be continuing the other Party the Non

Defaulting Party shall have the right i to designate aday no earlier than the day such

notice is effective and no later than 20 days after such notice is effective as an early

termination date Early Termination Date ii withhold any payments due to the

Defaulting Party under this Agreement and iii suspend performance The declaration

ofan Early Termination Date shall as ofthe Early Termination Date terminate this

Agreement and any obligation onthe Company s part to provide service to Customer

under this Agreement or any other agreement or rate schedule on the basis of

i any terms or provisions ofthis Agreement

ii any previous agreements between the Customer and the Company including but not

limited to any previous electric service agreements any settlement agreements resolving

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 if

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 61 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No l08

Original Sheet No 32

FERC proceedings or any settlement agreements resolving any state or federal court

suits including the antitrust suits filed in the U S District Court for the Northern District

ofIndiana in DocketNos 74 72 75 210 77 210 79 43 or

iii any FERC tariffs or court orders in existence as ofthe Effective Date ofthis

Agreement

Customer expressly acknowledges that Customer also waives any right to request vacatur

ofthe order of dismissal or to reinstitute proceedings in the antitrust suits filed in U S

District Court for the Northern District ofIndiana in Docket Nos 74 72 75 210 77 210

79 43

7 3 Suspension ofPerformance Notwithstanding any other provision ofthis Agreement if

an Event ofDefault shall have occurred and be continuing the Non Defaulting Party

upon written notice to the Defaulting Party shall have the right

a to suspend performance under this Agreement provided however in no event shall

any such suspension continue for longer than fifteen 15 Business Days unless an

Early Termination Date shall have been declared and notice thereofpursuant to

Article 9 been given

b to exercise any remedy available at law subject to the limitations set forth in Section

10 1 hereof including the right to seekto recover direct damages before a court of

competent jurisdiction and if the Defaulting Party is the Customer Company s right

to seek to recover its stranded costs at FERC in accordance with Section 35 26 of

FERG s regulations and u

c to exercise any remedy available in equity

74 Obli2ations At Expiration or Termination Upon the termination or expiration ofthis

Agreement in addition to such rights and obligations enumerated elsewhere in this

Agreement the grant ofany and all right and interest to Company to supply Full

Requirements Electric Service underthis Agreement shall cease Customer and

Company shall cooperate in advance to the extent possible to make all necessary filings

with the Transmission Provider and to perform all other acts necessary to transfer all such

rights and interests back to Customer in atimely manner

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006
Effective July 1 2006 i1

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 62 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 33

ARTICLE 8 CURTAILMENT TEMPORARY INTERRUPTIONS AND FORCE

MAJEURE

8 1 Curtailment If there is ashortage ofEnergy requiring the curtailment ofthe

Company s Firm Energy deliveries then upon being notified by the Transmission

Provider or the Company Customer will institute procedures which will cause a

corresponding curtailment ofthe use ofEnergy by its Retail Load It is the express

intention ofthis provision that any curtailment ofFirm Energy shall fall equitably upon

all firm loads served by the Company after to the extent within the Company s control

the curtailment ofits non fmn loads Ifupon notification ofa requirement to curtail

Customer fails to institute suchprocedures Company shall be entitled to limit deliveries

ofFirm Energy to Customer in order to effectuate reductions in Energy deliveries in the

smallest amount that is operationally practical equivalent to or greater than the reduction

which would have been effected had Customer fulfilled its curtailment obligation

hereunder during the period any shortage exists and in such event Company shall not

incur any liability to Customer in connectionwith any such action so taken by Company

8 2 Temporary Interruptions Company will use reasonable diligence in furnishing Firm

Energy to Customer but Company does not guarantee that the supply ofFirm Energy

furnished to Customer will be uninterrupted or that voltage and frequency will be atall

times constant The Company will not unduly discriminate against the Customer as

among its retail and wholesale customers when handling the impact oftemporary

interruptions Temporary interruption ofFirm Energy deliveries hereunder shall not

constitute a breach ofthe obligations ofCompany under this Agreement and Company

s all not i any such case be liable to Customer for damages resulting from any such

temporary interruptions of serVice

83 Force Majeure To the extent either Party is prevented by Force Majeure from carrying

out in whole or part its obligations under this Agreement and such Party the Claiming

Party gives notice and details ofthe Force Majeure to the other Party as soon as

practicable then the Claiming Party shall be excused from the performance ofits

obligations with respect to this Agreement other than the obligation to make payments

then due or becoming due with respect to performance prior to the Force Majeure The

Claiming Party shall remedy the Force Majeure with all reasonable dispatch The non

Claiming Party shall not be required to perform or resume performance of its obligations

to the ClaimingParty corresponding to the obligations of the Claiming Party excused by

Force Majeure

84 Transmission Curtailment Neither Party may raise aclaim ofForce Majeure based in

whole or in part on curtailment by the Transmission Provider unless i suchParty has

contracted for firm transmission with the Transmission Provider for the services to be

delivered to or received at the Delivery Point and ii such curtailment is due to force

majeure or uncontrollable force or a similar term as defmedunder the Transmission

Provider s tariff

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 63 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 34

ARTICLE 9 NOTICES REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PARTIES

9 1 Notices Any notice demand or request required or authorized by this Agreement to be

given by one party to another Party shall be in writing Such notice shall be sent by

facsimile courier personally delivered or mailed postage prepaid to the representative

ofthe other Party designated in this Article 9 Any such notice demand or request shall

be deemed to be given i when received by facsimile ii when actually received if

delivered by courier overnight mail or personal delivery or iii three 3 days after

deposit in the United States mail if sent by first class mail

a Notices and other communications by Company to Customer shall be addressed to

Dorothy Appleyard Mayor
City ofSouth Haven Michigan
539 Phoenix Street

South Haven Michigan 49090 1499

Phone 269 637 8087

Facsimile 269 637 5319

With a copy to

Amanda Sleigh City Clerk

City of SouthHaven Michigan
539 Phoenix St

South Haven Michigan 49090 1499

Phone 269 6370750

Facsimile 269 637 5319

Robert G Stickland P E Director ofPublic Works

City ofSouth Haven Michigan
1199 8th Avenue

South Haven Michigan 49090 1499

Phone 269 637 0719

Facsimile 269 637 4778

b Notices and other communications by Customer to Company shall be addressed to

President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
One Summit Square
Ft Wayne IN 46802

Phone 260 425 2355

Facsimile 260 425 2318

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 64 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 35

Vice President Energy Marketing
American Electric Power Service Corporation
155 W Nationwide Blvd Suite 500

Columbus OH 43215

Phone 614 583 6408

Facsimile 614 583 1626

With acopy to

Credit Risk Management
American Electric Power Service Corporation
155 W Nationwide Blvd Suite 400

Columbus OH 43215

Phone 614 583 6728

Facsimile 614 583 1626

c Any Party may change its representative by written notice to the other Parties

9 2 Authority ofRepresentative The Parties representatives designated in Section 9 1

shall have full authority to act for their respective principals in all technical matters

relating to the performance ofthis Agreement The Parties representatives shall not

however have the authority to amend modify or waive any provision ofthis Agreement

unless they are authorized officers oftheir respective entities and such amendment

modification orwaiver is made pursuant to Section 16 6

ARTICLE 10 LIABILITY INDEMNIFICATION AND RELATIONSlllP OF PARTIES

10 1 Limitation on Consequential Incidental and Indirect Dama2es TO THE FULLEST

EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW NEITHER CUSTOMER NOR COMPANY NOR

THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS DIRECTORS AGENTS EMPLOYEES

MEMBERS PARENTS SUBSIDIARIES ORAFFILIATES SUCCESSORS OR

ASSIGNS OR THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS DIRECTORS AGENTS OR

EMPLOYEES SUCCESSORS SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSIGNS SHALL BE LIABLE

TO THE OTHER PARTY OR THEIR RESPECTIVE MEMBERS PARENTS

SUBSIDIARIES AFFILIATES OFFICERS DIRECTORS AGENTS EMPLOYEES

SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS FOR CLAIMS SUITS ACTIONS OR CAUSES OF

ACTION FOR INCIDENTAL INDIRECT SPECIAL PUNITIVE MULTIPLE OR

CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES CONNECTED WITH OR RESULTING FROM

PERFORMANCE OR NON PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY

ACTIONS UNDERTAKEN IN CONNECTION WITH OR RELATED TO THIS

AGREEMENT INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY SUCH DAMAGES

WHICH ARE BASED UPON CAUSES OF ACTION FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT

TORT INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND MISREPRESENTATION BREACH OF

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

J
I

I

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 65 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 36

WARRANTY STRICT LIABILITY STATUTE OPERATION OF LAW UNDER

ANY INDEMNITY PROVISION OR ANY OTHER THEORY OF RECOVERY IF

NO REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGES IS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN

THE OBLIGOR S LIABILITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO DIRECT DAMAGES ONLY

AND SUCH DIRECT DAMAGES SHALL BE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE

MEASURE OF DAMAGES AND ALL OTHER REMEDIES OR DAMAGES AT LAW

OR IN EQUITY ARE WAIVED THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION 10 1 SHALL

APPLY REGARDLESS OF FAULT AND SHALL SURVIVE TERMINATION

CANCELLATION SUSPENSION COMPLETION OR EXPIRATION OF THIS

AGREEMENT

10 2 Indemnification

a To the extent permitted by law each Party shall indemnify defend and hold hannless

the other Party from and against any Claims arising from or out ofany event

circumstance act or incident occurring or existing during the period when control and

title to Full Requirements Electric Service is vested in such Party as provided in

Section 103 ofthis Agreement

b Each Party shall indemnify defend and hold harmless the other Party from and

against any and all Claims for damages to any person or destruction of any property

arising in any manner directly or indirectly by reason ofthe acts of such Party s

authorized representatives while onthe premises ofthe other Party under any rights

ofaccess provided herein

c Customer shall indemnify defend and hold hannless the Company from and against

any and all Claims for damages to any individual firm or corporation constituting

any part ofCustomer s Retail Load arising in any manner directly or indirectly by

reason of a failure interruption curtailment or deficiency in Company s supply of

Full Requirements Electric Service

d Neither Party assumes any responsibility of any kind with respect to the construction

maintenance or operation ofthe system or otherproperty owned or used by the other

Party To the extent permitted by law each party agrees to indemnify defend and

hold harmless the other Party from any and all Claims for injuries to person or

property by any person firm or corporation in any way resulting from growing out

of or arising in or in connection with the construction maintenance or operation of

the other Party s system or other property The Customer further agrees to

indemnify defend and hold harmless the Company from any and all Claims for

injuries topersons or property by any person firm or corporation in any way

resulting from growing out of or arising in or in connection with the use of or

contact with Energy delivered hereunder after it is delivered to Customer and while it

is flowing through the lines of Customer or is being distributed by Customer or is

being used by Retail Load

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 a

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 66 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 37

e Ifa Party intends to seek indemnification under this Section 102 from the other Party

with respect to any Claim the Party seeking indemnification shall give such other

Party notice of such Claim within thirty 30 days ofthe commencement of or actual

knowledge of such Claim whichever is earlier Such Party seeking indemnification

shall have the right at its sole cost and expense to participate in the defense of any

such Claim The Party seeking indemnification shall not compromise or settle any

such Claim without the prior consent ofthe other Party which consent shall not be

unreasonably withheld

10 3 Title Risk of Loss Title to and risk ofloss related to the Full Requirements Electric

Service provided hereunder shall transfer from Company to Customer at the Delivery

Points Company represents and warrants that it will deliver Full Requirements Electric

Service to Customer free and clear ofall claims or any interest therein or thereto by any

person arising prior to the Delivery Points

ARTICLE 11 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

111 Company and Customer Representations and Warranties Company and Customer

Represent and Warrant to the other that

a It is duly organized validly existing and in good standing under the laws ofthe

jurisdiction of its formation and is qualified to conduct business in either Indiana or

Michigan or both as applicable

b It has or upon execution ofthis Agreement will promptly seek all regulatory

authorizations necessary for it to legally perform its obligations under this

Agreement

c The execution delivery and performance ofthis Agreement are within its powers

have been duly authorized by all necessary action and do not violate any ofthe terms

and conditions in its governing documents including but not limited to any

organizational documents charters by laws indentures mortgages or any other

contracts or documents to which it is aparty or any law rule regulation order or the

like applicable to it

d This Agreement and each other document executed and delivered in accordance with

this Agreement constitutes its legally valid and binding obligation enforceable against

it in accordance with its terms subject to any legal and equitable defenses

e It is not bankrupt and there are noproceedings pending orbeing contemplated by it

or to its knowledge threatened against it which would result in it being or becoming

bankrupt

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 1

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 67 of 102



OS 24 2005 17 01 2595374778 SOUTH HAVEN DPW PAGE 02

Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 38

f There is not pending or to its knowledge threatened agaiost it any legal proceedings
that could materially andor adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations

under this Agreement including but not limited to Related Documents and

g There is no Event ofDefault or events which with the giving ofnotice or lapse of

time 01both would constitute an Event ofDefault with rlgpect to it and no sllch

event or circumstance would occur as a result ofits entering into or performing its

obligations under this Agreement

t 1 2 Customer Renresentations and Warranties Customer Represents and Warrants to

Company that

a With respect to its oontractual obligations hereunder and perfonuance thereof it will

not claim immunity on the grounds of its status as amunicipality under Federal or

state law or similar grounds with respect to itselfor its revenues or assets from i

suit H jurisdiction ofcourt including a court located outside the jurisdiction ofits

organization iii reliefby way ofirjunction order for specific performance or

recovel7Y ofproperty iv attachment of assets or v execution or enforcement ofany

judgment and

b Customer shall provide and maintain suitable protective devices on its equipment to

prevent any loss injury or damage tbat might result from single phasing condition s or

any other fluctuations or irregularity in the supply of Enclgy Company shall not be

liable for any loss injury or damage resulting from a single phasing condition or any

other fluctuation or irregularity in the supply of Energy which could have been

prevented by Customer s use ofsuch protective devices

ARTICLE 12 ASSIGNMENT

12 1 General Prohibition A2ainst Assjenments Except as provided in Section 12 2below

no Party shall assigll pledge or otherwise transfer this Agreement or any right or

obligation under this Agreement without frrst obtaining the otherParty s written consent

which consent shall not beunreasonably withheld

12 2 Exceptions to Prohibition A2ainst Assi2l1ments A Party may without the other

Party sprior written consent and without relievjng itself from liabmty hereunder i

transfer sel pledge encumber or assign this Agreement or the accounts revenues or

proceeds hereof in connection with any fmancing or other financial arrangements or ii

transfer orassign this agreement to any person or entity succeeding by merger or by

acqui ition to all or substantially all of the assets of the assigning Party where such

person s or entity s creditworthiness is equal to or higher than that of the assigning
Party provided however that in each such case any such a signee shall agree in writing

to be bound by the terms and conditions hereof

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indjana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 68 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 39

ARTICLE 13 CONFIDENTIALITY

13 1 Treatment of Confidential Information

a To the extent permitted by law all Confidential Information shall be held and treated

by the Parties and their agents in confidence used solely in connection with this

Agreement and shall not except as hereinafter provided be disclosed without the

other Party s prior written consent

b Notwithstanding the foregoing Confidential Information may be disclosed i to a

third party for the purpose ofeffectuating the supply transmission andor distribution

ofFull Requirements Electric Service to be delivered pursuant to this Agreement ii

to regulatory authorities ofcompetent jurisdiction or as otherwise required by

applicable law regulation or order including state sunshine open meeting freedom

of information or similar laws iii as part of any required periodic filing or

disclosure with or to any regulatory authority of competent jurisdiction and iv to

third parties in connection with merger acquisitiondisposition and fmancing

transactions provided that any such third party shall have signed aconfidentiality

agreement with the Disclosing Party containing customary terms and conditions that

protect against the disclosure ofthe Confidential Information and that strictly limit

the recipient s use ofsuch information only for the purpose ofthe subject transaction

and that provide for remedies for non compliance Disclosing party shall make all

reasonable efforts to ensure that Confidential Information remains confidential even

if disclosed including marking such information confidential and requesting
confidential treatment ofsuch information

c In the event that aparty Disclosing Party is requested or required to disclose any

Confidential Information pursuant to subsection b ofthis Article the Disclosing

party shall provide the other Party with prompt written notice ofany suchrequest or

requirement so that the other Party may seek an appropriate protective order other

confidentiality arrangement or waive compliance with the provisions of this

Agreement If failing the entry ofa protective order other confidentiality

arrangement or the receipt ofa waiver hereunder the Disclosing Party in the opinion

ofcounsel is compelled to disclose Confidential Information the Disclosing Party

may disclose that portion ofthe Confidential Information which the Disclosing

Party s counsel advises that the Disclosing Party is compelled to disclose

d The Parties shall be entitled to all remedies available at law or in equity to enforce or

seek relief in connection with this confidentiality obligation Inaddition to the

foregoing the Disclosing party shall indemnify defend and hold harmless the other

party from and against any Claims threatened or filed and any losses damages

expenses attorneys fees or court costs incurred by such Party in connection with or

arising directly or indirectly from or out ofthe Disclosing Party s disclosure ofthe

Confidential Information to third parties except as permitted above

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006
Effective July 1 2006 4I

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 69 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 40

e Notwithstanding the above provisions Company shallbe permitted to communicate

to the Transmission Provider any necessary information including Confidential

Information with regard to implementation ofthis Agreement and will make all

reasonable efforts to ensure that Confidential Information remains confidential

ARTICLE 14 REGULATORY AUTHORITIES

14 1 Effect of Re2ulation

a Each Party shall perform its obligations hereunder in accordance with applicable law

rules and regulations Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement

nothing in this Agreement affects modifies ornegates either Party s rights or

obligations under the FPA and the regulations promulgated thereunder or any other

federal or state law or regulation Nothing contained herein shall be construed to

constitute consent or acquiescence by either Party to any action ofthe other Party

which violates the laws ofthe United States or any applicable state laws as those

laws may be amended supplemented or superseded or which violates any other law

or regulation or any order judgment or decree ofany court or governmental

authority ofcompetent jurisdiction

b The Parties hereto recognize that this Agreement is subject to the jurisdiction ofthe

FERC and that the Company will file this Agreement with the FERC Should the

FERC not accept this Agreement for filing without change or condition this

Agreement shall not become effective unless the Parties agree otherwise in writing it

being the intent ofthe Parties that the FERCs acceptance ofthis Agreement without

change or condition is aprerequisite to the validity ofthis Agreement In the event

that this Agreement is not accepted for filing without change or condition the Parties

agree to negotiate in good faith to reach an agreement that provides for a similar

balancing ofinterests as is reflected in this Agreement

c The Parties agree to use their best efforts to seek and obtainthe prompt approval of

this Agreement by the FERC

d Once this Agreement is accepted for filing by the FERC and Company commences

delivering Full Requirements Service to Customer under this Agreement the Parties

agree 1 that the currently effective Electric Service Agreement between Company

and Customer shall be terminated and superceded and shall no longer have any force

or effect and 2 that if no other customers are taking service thereunder the

Company can cancel any FERC Electric Tariff or Tariffs underwhich Customer is

currently served The Customer agrees not to oppose such cancellation and further

agrees that it will not be eligible for cost based service under any such tariff or tariffs

as long as they remain in place

Issued by MarshaP Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006
Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 70 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 41

e The Parties recognize the Company s obligation under FERC s Order 888 to

unbundle the costs ofproviding service to Customer under this Agreement Customer

agrees that the unbundling ofthe costs ofgeneration NITS Ancillary Services and

Local Delivery Services to be charged to Customer by Companyunder Article 4 of

this Agreement satisfies the FERCs requirements even though the costs ofcertain

Ancillary Services are included as generation related costs under the formula rate

mechanism in Appendix B Company agrees to provide Customer with a breakdown

of costs that would be charged to Customer under the OATT assuming the Customer

werepaying amarket based generation price as opposed to a cost based formula

rate within thirty 30 days of Customer s request

ARTICLE 15 DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND STANDARD

OF REVIEW FOR PROPOSED CHANGES

15 1 Resolution bv Officers ofthe Parties In the event ofany dispute among the Parties

arising out of or relating to this Agreement the Parties shall refer the matter to their duly

authorized officers for resolution Should such officers fail to resolve the dispute within

ten 10 days after such referral the Parties agree that any such dispute may be resolved

pursuant to Section 15 2

15 2 Procedures for Resolution ofDisputes

a Any claim counterclaim demand cause ofaction dispute or controversy arising out

ofor relating to this Agreement or the relationship established by this Agreement any

provision hereof the alleged breach thereof or in any way relating to the subject

matter ofthis Agreement involving the Parties andor their respective representatives

for purposes ofthis Section only collectively the Disputes even though some or

all ofsuch Disputes allegedly are extra contractual in nature whether such Claims

sound in contract tort or otherwise at law or in equity under state or federal law

whether provided by statute or the common law for damages or any other relief may

upon mutual agreement of the parties be resolved by binding arbitration Such

arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules

ofthe American Arbitration Association Upon agreement to arbitrate any award

made hereunder shall be binding upon the Parties their successors and assigns and

any trustee or receiver ofeither Party The existence ofthis Section 152 a absent

an agreement ofthe Parties to proceed thereunder shall not affect by itself FERC s

jurisdiction overthis Agreement or any disputes under this Agreement or either

Party s rights to seek relief from FERC to resolve such disputes

b In the event aDispute comes before acourt ofcompetent jurisdiction the Parties

hereby knowingly voluntarily and intentionally waive any rights they may have to a

trial by jury in respect of any litigation based hereon or arising out of under or in

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006

Effective July 1 2006 II Ci u

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 71 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 42

connection with this Agreement andor any course ofconduct course ofdealing

statements whether oral or written or actions ofCompany and Customer related

hereto

153 Standard ofReview

a Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 151 and 15 2hereof and subject to the

exceptions set out in Section 15 3 b the Parties agree that the provisions ofthis

Agreement including without limitation the rates and charges and conditions of

service contained herein are subject to change by the FERC and that the Company

and Customer shall be entitled at any time and from time to time to apply for or to

take other action to request suchachange under Sections 205 or 206 ofthe FPA

respectively and pursuant to the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder

Sections 205 or 206

b The Parties expressly agree that the following provisions ofthis Agreement are not

subject to change under Sections 205 or 206 absent the mutual written consent of the

Parties

1 the Term and expiration date ofthis Agreement

2 the Parties agreement that Customer is not entitled to cost based rates

after the cancellation termination or expiration ofthis Agreement on the

basis ofthe agreements orders andor tariffs set out in Sections 2 2 d 23

b and 72

3 the cessation ofthe Company s obligation to plan to meet Customer s

Retail Load after the end of the Term ofthis Agreement absent an

agreement ofthe Parties that extends beyond the Term ofthis Agreement

4 the continuation ofa cost based formula rate throughout the Term of this

Agreement

5 the credit provisions in Article 6

6 the cost of service provisions contained in parts a through fof Section

4 6 ofthis Agreement except as explicitly specified in Section 4 6 b and

f and

7 the standard ofreview provisions in this Section

It is the intent ofthis Section and the Parties that to the maximum extent permitted

by law the provisions ofthis Agreement that are enumerated in this Section 153 b

shall not be subject to change under Sections 205 and 206 and that absent the written

agreement ofthe Parties to change any ofthe above enumerated provisions the

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

o
l

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 72 of 102

lhalberstadt
Sticky Note
Proposed addition:  , provided further, however, Customer agrees not to apply for or to assert or take any other action to request a change to the Agreement under Section 206 of the FPA for any portion of the Delivery Period prior to June 1, 2015.



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 43

standard ofreview for changes to any ofthose enumerated provisions proposed by a

Party or a non party or the FERC acting sua sponte shall be the public interest

standard ofreview set forth in United Gas Pipe Line Co v Mobile Gas Service

Corp 350 US 332 1956 and Federal Power Commission v Sierra Pacific Power

Co 350 U S 348 1956 the Mobile Sierra Doctrine

ARTICLE 16 GENERAL PROVISIONS

16 1 Third Party Beneficiaries This Agreement is intended solely for the benefit ofthe

Parties hereto and nothing herein will be construed to create any duty to or standard of

care with reference to or any liability to any person not aParty hereto

16 2 No Dedication of Facilities Any undertakings or commitments by one Party to the

other under this Agreement shall not constitute the dedication ofgeneration facilities or

the transmission system or any portion thereof ofeither party to the other Party

163 Waivers The failure ofaParty to insist in any instance upon strict performance of any

ofthe provisions ofthis Agreement or to take advantage ofany ofits rights under this

Agreement shall not be construed as ageneral waiver ofany suchprovision or the

relinquishment ofany such right except to the extent such waiver is in writing and

signed by an authorized representative ofsuch Party

164 Interpretation The interpretation and performance ofthis Agreement shall be in

accordance with and controlled by the laws of the State ofMichigan without giving

effect to its conflict oflaws provisions

16 5 Severability Ifany provision or provisions ofthis Agreement shall be held to be

invalid illegal orunenforceable the validity legality and enforceability of the

remaining provisions shall in no way be affected or impaired thereby and the Parties

hereby agree to effect such modifications to this Agreement as shall be reasonably

necessary in order to give effect to the original intention ofthe Parties

16 6 Modification No modification to this Agreementwill be binding on any Party unless it

is in writing and signed by the Parties

16 7 Counterparts This Agreementmay be executed in any number of counterparts and

each executed counterpart shall have the same force and effect as an original instrument

16 8 Headin2s Article and Section headings used throughout this Agreement are for the

convenience of the Parties only and are not to be construed as part ofthis Agreement

16 9 Audit Each Party has the right at its sole expense and during normal working hours to

examine the records ofthe other Party to the extent reasonably necessary to verify the

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006 1

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 73 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 44

accuracy ofany invoice charge or computation made pursuant to this Agreement If

requested a party shall provide to the other Party invoices evidencing the quantities of

Full Requirements Electric Service Ifany such examination reveals any inaccuracy in

any invoice the necessary adjustments to such invoice and the payments thereofwill be

made promptly and shall bear interest at a rate calculated in accordance with Section

35 19a ofthe FERC s Regulations from the date the overpayment or underpayment was

made untilpaid provided however that no adjustment for any statement or payment will

be made unless objection to the accuracy thereofwas made prior to the lapse oftwelve

12 months from the rendition thereof and thereafter any objection shall be deemed

waived

16 10 Records TheParties shall keep or as necessary cause to be kept by their respective

agents for aperiod of at least five 5 years such records as may be needed toafford a

clear history ofthe Full Requirements Service supplied pursuant to this Agreement For

any matters in dispute the Parties shall keep the records related to such matters until the

dispute is ended

16 11 Survival The provisions ofArticles 10 13 and 15 and Sections 16 9 and 16 10 hereof

and any other Section ofthis Agreement that specifies by its terms that it survives

termination shall survive the cancellation termination or expiration ofthis Agreement

16 12 Cooperation to Effectuate Areement Each Party shall cooperate to implement the

provisions ofand to administer this Agreement in accordance with the intent ofthe

Parties

ARTICLE 17 RULES OF CONSTRUCTION

17 1 Terms used in this Agreementbut not listed in this Article or defined herein or in Article

1 shall have meanings as commonly used in the English language and where applicable
in Good Utility Practice

17 2 Words not otherwise defmed herein that have well known and generally accepted

technical or trade meanings are used herein in accordance with such recognized
meanings

17 3 The masculine shall include the feminine and neuter

174 The words include includes and including are deemed to be followed by the words

without limitation

175 References to contracts agreements and other documents and instruments shall be

references to the same as amended supplemented or otherwise modified from time to

time

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July I 2006

I

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 74 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 45

17 6 The Appendices attached hereto are incorporated in and are intended to be apart of this

Agreement provided that in the event of a conflict between the terms of any Appendices
and the terms ofthis Agreement the terms ofthis Agreement shall take precedence

17 7 References to laws and to terms defmed in and other provisions of laws shall be

references to the same or a successor to the same as amended supplemented or

otherwise modified from time to time

17 8 References to aperson entity or governmental authority shall include its permitted
successors and assigns and any entity succeeding to the functions and capacities ofthat

person entity or governmental authority

17 9 References to Articles Sections or Appendices shall be to articles sections or

appendices of this Agreement or as appropriate to sections ofthe FPA or FERC s

regulations

17 10 Unless the context plainly indicates otherwise words importing the singular number shall

be deemed to include the plural number and vice versa terms such as hereof

herein hereunder and other similar compounds ofthe word here shall mean and

refer to the entire Agreement rather than any particular part ofthe same

17 11 This Agreement wasnegotiated and prepared by both Parties with the advice and

participation of counsel The Parties have agreed to the wording ofthis Agreement and

none ofthe provisions hereof shall be construed against one Party onthe ground that

such Party is the author ofthis Agreement or any part hereof

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

f
Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 75 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 46

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have caused their duly authorized

representatives to execute this Agreement on their behalf as ofthe date first above written

City of South Haven Michigan

Name Dorothy Appleyard

Title Mayor

Name Micha Morris

Title Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006 Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 76 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

APPENDIX A

LIST OF DELIVERY POINTS

CITY OF SOUTH HAYEN

DELNERY POINTS

AS OF MAY 1 2006

it DESCRIPTION

1 Phoenix

2 Lovejoy

Issued by Marsha P Ryan President

Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Original Sheet No 47

DELNERY

VOLTAGE

Transmission

Transmission

Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 77 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 48

APPENDIX B

Costof Service Formulas

A 1

DETERMINATION OF DEMAND RELATED COSTS AND

DEMAND CHARGE

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

14 Annual Demand Revenue Requirement

Demand
Related Reference

P A 5 L18 Col 2

P A 14 L 8 Col 2

P A 15 L14 Col 2

P A 16 L 7 Col 2

P A 17 L5 Col 2

Lines 1 through 5

P A4 L3 Col 2

P A 4 L4 Col 2

Note A

L6 L 7 L 8 L9

FERC 1 pA01b

kVV L10 L11 1 000

kVV Note B

L12XL 13

kVV Note B

kVV L 14 L 15

Note C

IkW L 16XL 17

Note C

IkW L 16XL 19

1 Return on Investment

2 Operation Maintenance Expense

3 Depreciation Expense

4 Taxes other Than Income Taxes

5 Income Tax

6 Subtotal

7 Less Off System Sales for Resale Expenses

8 Less Customer Share of Off System Sales Margin

9 Adjustment of Other Income and Deductions

10 Annual Production Fixed Cost

11 Monthly Peak Megawatts

12 Demand Charge @ Generation

13 Loss Adjusted Monthly Demand at Peak

15 Loss Adjusted Monthly Demand

16 Demand Charge @ Generation

17 Transmission Loss Factor

18 Transmission Voltage Demand Charge

19 Primary LossFactor

20 Primary Voltage Demand Charge

Note A To be determined by accounting department

Note B Total customer demands adjusted for losses to generation

Note C Losses pursuant to OATT and loss study

Issuedby Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 78 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Co tof service Formulas

A 2
DETERMINATION OF ENERGY RELATED COSTSAND

ENERGY CHARGE
TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

1

2

3

4

Energy
Related

Total Fuel

Purchased Power 555

other production Expense

Total Production Cost

5 Less Off5ystem Sales for Resale Expenses

6 Less Customer Share of OffSystem Sales Margin

subtotal7

8 Administrative General Expense

9 Return on Investment

10 Depreciation Expense

11 Income Tax

12 Annual Production Variable costs

13 Production Fuel COsts

14 Non Fuel costs
s

15 Net mWh Generated and Purchased less mWh Sold

16

17

Energy Charge

FuelCharge

18 Transmission LossFactor

19 Transmission Voltage Energy Charge

20 Transmission Voltage Fuel Charge

21 Primary Loss Factor

primary Voltage Energy Charge

Primary Voltage Fuel Charge

22

23

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

MNh

AMIh

kWh

Original Sheet No 49

APPENDIX B

Reference

P A 14 L 16 CoI 4

P A 14 L 1 Col 4

P A 14 LA Col 3

Unes1 2 3

P A4 L3 CoI 3

P A4 L4 Col 3

LA L5 L6

P A 10 L17 Col 5

P A 5 L18 CoI 3

P A 15 L14 Col 3

P A 17 L5 COI 3

Lines 7 thru 11

P A 14 L20 Col 4

L12 L13

FERC1 p 401b

L14 L 15 I 1 000

L13 L 15 1 OOO

P A 1 L 17

L 16XL 18

kWh L 17 XL 18

P A 1 L 19

kWh L 16XL 21

kWh L 17 XL 21

Eff ctivJuly 1 200

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 79 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 50

Costof Service Formullls
A 3

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

APPENDIX B

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Elfoctlv July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 80 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Costof Servlce Formulas

A 4
OFF SYSTEM SALES REVENUES AND MARGIN

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

APPENDIX a

PRODUCTION

Reference Amount Demand Energy
1 2 3

1 OlfSystem Sales Revenues Note A

2 Less Margins from Off System Sales NoteB

3 Off System Sales Expenses L1 L2

4 custornerShare of Margins 50 of L 2

Note A Revenues associated with offsystem sales as reported in Account 447

FERC1 Page 311 column Hexcluding RQ

Note B From Accoun1lng

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Original Sheet No 51

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 81 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 52

APPENOIX a

Costof Service formulas

A 5

RETURN ON PRODUCTION RELATED INVESTMENT

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

PRODUCTION

Reference Amount Demand Energy

1 ELECTRIC PLANT
1 2 3

2 Gross Plant in Service PA6 L7 CoL 2

3 Less Accumulated Depreciation P A 6 L17 Col 2

4 LeSS Accumulated Deferred Taxes P A6 L18 CoL 2

5 Net Plant inService L 2 L3 L4

e Plant Held forFuture Ue FERC1 P 200 UO S

7 Construction Work In Progress Note A S

8 Subtotal Electric Plant L5 LG 17

9 WORKING CAPITAL

10 Materials SUpplies
11 Fuel PA 9 L 2

12 Nonfuel P A 9 L 5 S

13 Total M S L11 L 12
S

14 prepayments
Note B

15 Cash Requirements P M LB

16 Totallnves1ment L 8L13 L 14 L 15

17 Composite Cost of Capital P M1 L4 CO 4

18 Retum on Investment L 16 x L 17 S

Note A production llIIlount only Tobe determined by I M accounting department

Note B Classl1Ied and functionallzed using Gross Plant from P A6L8

Total Company Account 165 FERC1 P 110 L46

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 82 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Costof Servlce Formulas

A6
PRODUCTIONRELATED ELECtRIC PLANfIN SERVICE

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Reference

1
2

GROSS PLANT IN SERVICE

Plant inService Note A

3 Less ARorelated Plant

4 Restated Plant inService L2 L3

5 Generator step UpS Included inAccl 352 8353 above

6

7

General Intangible Plant P A 7 L 1S

fatal L4 L5 L6

8 Percentage of Tetal

9 ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIAfION

10 Plant In SeloIIce Note C

11 Less ARorelated Depreciation

12 Adjustment to Depreciation Rate Note0

13 Generator SlepUps Included In Accl 352 8353 above

14

15

16

17

Adjustment to Depreciation Rate

General 8Intangible Plant

Adjustment to Depreciation Rate

Total

Note D

Note B

Note B D

L10 L11 L12
L13 L14 L 1S
L1S

18 ACCUM DEFERRED TAXES Note E

Original Sheet No 53

APPENDIX B

System
PRODUCTION

Amount Amount Demand Energy

1 2 3 4

S

s

S

S

S

S

Note B from PI7 L 17

Note N Gross Plant In Service Isthe average of beginning and ending year balances FERC1 p 206 8207

Note C AccumUlated DepreCiation IS theaverage of beginning and ending year balances FERC 1 P 219

Note0 From Accounting

Note E FERCl p 111 and 113 ACCOunts 281 283190

Excludes dlrec1ly assignable amount from aceountlng of

Allocated on Gross Plant From L8 above

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Effective July 1 2006
n

fl

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 83 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original SheetNo 54

APPENOIX B
COlltof ervlcll FormWas

A 1

PRODUCTION RELATED GENERAL PLANT ALLOCATION

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

General Plant Accounts 101 and 106

Related to

Total Allocation Production

System Factor 1 x 2 Demand Energy

1 GENERAL PLANT 1 2 3 4 5

2 389 Land

3 390 Struclures

4 391 Office Equipment
5 392 Transportation Equipment
6 393 Stores Equipmlmt S

7 394 Toolll ShoP 8 Garage Equipment
8 95 Lab Equipment

S

9 396 Power Operated Equipment
10 397 Communications Equipment S

11 398 Miscellaneous Equipment
12 Subtotal

Note A S S

13 PERCENT ofSubtotal

14 other Tangible Property Excluding 399 1

15 399 0 otherTangIble Property
S

16 TOTAL GENERAL PLANT Exd 399 1 FERG1 P 206

17 PERCENTof Total

18 Intangible Plant
FERG1 P 204 S

19 General and Intangible Plant
S

Note A Allocation factors based M wages and salaries in electric operations and I8M AEPSC Total

maintenMce expenses excluding adminimliveand general expenses NoteB

a Total wages and salaries in electric O M excluding A G

FERG1 P 54 Column b L25L24

b Productionwages and salaries In electricO M

FERG1 P 54 CoI b L1B
S

c Ratio bla

Oas51llcallon factors based M wages and Galartes In electric operations and

maintenance expenses excluding admlnislrative and general expenses

a Production wages and salaries in electricO M

b Production demandrelated wages and salaries
S

c Ratio bill

No B Frolll ACCOUnting

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Effective July 1 2006
i
I

I

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 84 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Costof ervlce Formulas

A 8
PRODUCTION RELATED CASHREQUIREMENT

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Reference

1 Fuel Expense
P A 14 L16

2 Fuel Cash Requirements 451360 x L1

3 Purchased power P A 14 L1

4 Purehased PowerCash Requirements 451360 x L 3

5 Total OM Excluding Fuel P A14 L8

6 OtherOM Expense L 5 L3

7 OtheroM Cash Requirements 451360 x L6

8 Total Cash Requirements L2 LA L7

Original SheetNo 55

APPENDIX B

PRODUCTION
Amount 15emimd nergy

1 2 3

S

S S

S

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Effective July 1 2006

Indiana Michigan Power Company
Issued on May 26 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 85 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

CostooOfServlce Formulas

A 9
PRODUCTION REIATED MATERIALS SUPPLIES

TWELVE MONTHSENDED DECEMBER 31

Reference

1 Material Supplies

2 Fuel Note A FERC1 P 110

3 Non Fuel

4 Account 158 Allowances

5 Other Non Fuel

FERC1 P 110

Note B

6 Total Non Fuel L 4 L5

1 T ota Material 8 Supplies L2 L G

Original Sheet No 56

APPENDIX B

Related to

Total Allocation Production

System Factor 1 x 2 Demand Energy

1 2 3 4 5

S
S

S S

S

S
S

NoteA Accounts 120 151 152

Note B Accounts 154 through 157 and 163 FERC Form 1 P 110 Functionalized on Gross Plant from P A6LA

Issuedby Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Effective July 1 2006 r1Y

N

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 86 of 102



IndianaMichigan Power Company

FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 57

APPENDIX B

Cofltof Servlce Formules

A 10
PRODUCTION RELATED ADMINISTRATIVE GENERAL EXPENSE ALLOCATION

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

System Allocation PRODUCTION

Reference Amount Factor Amount Demand Energy

Account 1 2 3 4 5

1 ADMINISTRATIVE GENERAL EXPENSE

2 RELATED TOWAGES AND SALARIES

3 MG Salaries 920 FERC1 P 322

4 Office supplies
921 FERC1 P 322

5 Adm Expense Transfer Cr 922 FERQ1 P 322

6 OU1slde Services 923 FERC1 P 323

7 Injuries Damages
925 FERQ1 P 323

8 Employee Pensions 8 8enefits 926 FERC1 P 323

9 Franchise RequIrements
927 FERC1 P 323

10 Duplicate Charges cr 929 FERC1 P 323

11 Miscellaneous General Expenses 930 FERQ1 P 323 S

12 Rents
931 FERC1 P 323

13 Subtotal
Ls 31hru 12 Note A

14 Property Insurance 924 FERQ1 P 323 Note B

15 Regtdatory Comm Expenses
928 FERCo1 P351 Note C

16 Maintenance of General Plant 935 FERC1 P 323 NoteD

17 Total
Ls 131hru 16

Note A Allocation facior based on wages and salaries inelectricoperations and maintenance

expenses excluding administrative and general expenses See Page A 7

Note 6 From Accounting
Nolee FERC1 p351 exCluding FERC Annllt AssesTlent

Note 0 Allocated on Gross Plant from P A7L17

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Effective July 1 2006 lf

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 87 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

CostQf 5ervlce Formulas

A 11
COMPOSITE COST OFCAPITAL

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Reference

Total Company
Average Capitalization

1 2

1 Long Term Debt Note A

2 Preferredstock Note B

3 Common Stock NoteC

4 To1al

Note A Une 1 Columns 1 and 3 from Page A12

Note B Une2Columns 1 and 3 from PageA 13

Note C Line 3 Column 1 ftom FERG1 P 112 Total Proprietary capital of

LeSS Preferred Stock PA 13 L1 b

Less Premium on Preferred stock P A 13 L 1 c

Common Stock

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
IndianaMichigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

AIIENOIX e

cost of Composite
Capital Cost of Capital

2x3

3 4

Original SheetNo 58

Eff tive July 1 2 0li JR
16fJ

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 88 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No lOS

Costof Ssrvlce Formulas
A12

AVERAGE LONG TERM DEBT

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

APPENDIX B

Average
Debt Interest

Balance Booked

1 2

Total FERC1 P 112 P 117 Account 427 I

2 Preferred stoCk With Mandatory Redemption S S

FERC 1 P 257 2

3 AteQOIIt224 Pre83 SNF Disposal costs s

FERC 1 P 257

4 Amortization of Debt Qiscount and Expense

FERC 1 P 117 Accounts 428 4291

5 Total L1 L2 L3 L4
S S

6 Embedded Costs L 5 Cot 2JCol 1

Issuedby Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Original SheetNo 59

Effective July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 89 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Cost ofService fOI1l1u1as

A 13

AVERAGE PREf ERRED STOCK
TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

1 a Preferred StoelDividends

b Preferred Stock Issued

c Premium on Preferred Stock

d Preferred stockwith Mandatory Redemp on

e Total Preferred Stock

2 Average Cost Rate

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Original SheetNo 60

APPENDIX B

Reference Amount

FERC1 P 118 L29 S

Account 437
FERe1 P 257 2

FERC1 P 112 L3 S

FERC1 P 112 L6 S

Account 2070003

FERe1 P 257 2

L1 b l1 c L1 d

L1 alL1 e

EffectivJuly 1 2006 fIl

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 90 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Costof Service Formulas

A 14

PRODUCTION 0 M EXPENSE

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

1 Purchased Power FERC Fonn 1 P 327

2 System Control of Load Di atching FERC Fonn 1 P 321

3 other production Expenses FERC Form i P 321

4 Other production Expenses

5 Total Production Expense Excluding
Fuel Used In 8ectric Generallon above

6 A G Expense PA 10 L17

7 Generator Step Up related O M

8 Total 0 M Excluding Fuel

9 Fuel Account501 FERC Form1 P 320

10 Less Fuel Handling
11 Less Sale of FlyAsh R enue Expense

12 Plus Account 518
13 Plus Account 547

14 Less Pre 4fl83 Spent Nuclear Fuel

15 Plus Pre4fl 83 SpentNudearFuel Sludy

16 Total Fuel

17 Total ProductionO M

18 Less 0ffSyStem Sales R enues PA4 L 1

19 Plus company Share of Margins PA4L2 L4

20 Total Fuel Costs

21 Plus GsinsLosses on Ilsp of Allowances

22 Plus Nuclear Decomm Expense ARO

23 Less Nuclear oecommisioning Adjustment
24 Less Spent Nuclear Fuel AcfJUSlTlen1

25 Check Total Perbooks ProdUction 08M

Tolal

Account No Company
1

555
556
557

Note A

Note B

501

518

547

NoteC

L5 L16

A 14a

A14 a

A14a

L15 l 14

1321

S

s

s

s

s
s
S

S

Notek aasslf1dInto Fixed and Variable Components In accordancewith pA14 a

Note B FERC1 P 321 Accounts 562 569 510 allocated on Gross Plant rallo GSUto total

Note C Accounts 5180004 5180005

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Demand
Rxed

2

Original SheetNo 61

APPENDIX a

Energy
Non Fuel

Variable Fuel

3 4

s

EffectlvJuly 1 2006 j

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 91 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Coetof Servlce Formulae

A 14 a

CLASS1FICATION OF FIXED AND VARIABLE PRODUCTlONEXPENSES

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Une
FERC Account

No Description
No

1 Operation supervision and engineering
500

2 Fuel
501

3 Fuel Handling
5010003

4 Sale of FlyAsh Revenue Expense
5010012

5 Steam expenses
502

6 steatn frotn other sources
503

7 steam transferred Cr
504

8 Beeltic expenses
505

9 Miscellaneous steam power expenses
506

to Rents
507

11 Allowances
509

12 less Gains from Disposition of Allowances 411 8

13 Plus lossesfrom Disposition ofAllowances 411 9

14 Maintenance supeJllision and engineering 510

15 Maintenance ofstructures
511

16 Maintenance of boiler plant
512

17 Maintenance of electricplant
513

18 Maintenance of miscellaneous steam plant
514

19 Total steam power generation expenses

20 Operation supervision and engineeting
517

21 Coolants and Water
519

22 Steam expenses
520

23 steam from other sources
521

24 steam transferred Gr
522

25 Electric expell56S
523

26 Miscellaneous nuclear power expenses
524

2J Less Nuclear Decomm Expense ARO 524 0009

28 Rents
525

29 T etal nuclear power generation operation expenses

30 Maintenance SlIpeJ llision and engineering 528

31 Maintenance of slructures
529

32 Main1enance of reactor plantequipment
530

33 Malntenance of electricplant
531

34 Maintenance of misceDaneous nudear plant 532

35 Total nuclear power geneJatlon tnlDntenance expenses

36 less NucleerDecommissioning
524 0008

37 Plus Nuclear Decommissioning StudY

38 Operation supervision and engineering
535

39 Water forpower
536

40 Hydraulic expenses
537

41 8eclric expenses
538

42 Misc hydraulic powergeneration expenses 539

43 Rents
540

44 Maintenance SlIpervision and engineering
541

45 Maintenance of structures
542

46 Maintenance of reservoirs dIlms and watelWay 543

47 Malntenance Of electricplant
544

48 Maintenance of miscellaneous hydrauUc plant
545

49 iotall1ydraullc power generaton expenses

50 Operation supervision and engineering
546

51 Fuel
547

52 Generallon expenses
548

53 MisceDaneous other power generation expenses
549

54 Rents
550

55 Maintenance supervision and engineering 551

56 Maintenance of structures
552

57 Malntenance of generalion and electricplant 553

58 Maintenance of misc other power generallon plant 554

59 Total other power generalion expenses

60 purchased power
555

61 SjsIetn control and load dispatching
556

62 other expenses
557

63 TOTAL OTHER PRODUCTION EXPENSES

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Demand
Related

Original Sheet No 62

APPENDIX e

Energy
Related

xx

xx

xx
XX
xx

xx

Effective July 1 2006

8

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 92 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Costof 5ervice Formulas

A 1o

PRODUCT10NRELA TED DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

1 steam ProductionPlant Note A

2 Nuclear ProductionPlant Note A

Hydro Production Plant

3 ConvefJliOOal Note A

4 pump Storage
Note A

5 other production Note A

6 production SUbtotal

7 Less ARCRelated Depreciation 403 1 Note A

8 Plus NonNudear Oepr AccretIon Note B

9 Adjustment to Depredation Rate NoteB

10 productionRelated Gen Int Plant Note C

11 Adjustment to Depredallon Rate Note B C

12 GSUrelated Depreciation 8cpense Note B

13 Adjuslmentto Depreciation Rate Note B

14 Total production

Original SheetNo 63

APPENOIX B

Production
Related Demand Energy

1 2 3

S

5

5

S

5

S

S

5

Note P Unes 1 through 5areDepreciation Expense reported on page 336 of the

FERC Form No 1 for Accounts 403 404 and 405 exduding 403 1

Note B From AccOUnting

Note C General and Intangible Plant Depreciation Expense

production Related

Gen Plant Depr 8cp rod Related

Adjustment to General Plant Depreciation Expense

Production Related

Gen Plant Depr 8cp Prod Related

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
IndianaMichigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

FERG1 p 336 Col f

PageA 7 L t CoL 3

page17 L17 CoL 3

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 93 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

C09tof ervlce Fonnulas

A i6

PRODUCTION RELATED TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAXES

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

SYSTEM

REFERENCE AMOUNT
1

TAXES RELATED TO PRODUCTION

WAGES AND SALARIES

1 stateUnemployment Note A

2 FederalSodal Security 8 Unemployment Note A

3 Total Taxes Related to WIlges8 Salaries

4 Real and Personal Property Tax NoreA

5 Franchise Tax Note A

6 Total Taxes Related to Production Plant

7 Total Taxes OtherThan Income Taxes L3 L 6

8 Mise statecommission Assessments

9 Checlc Total Taxes Other FERG1 P 114

Notelo Taxes Olher 1tlan Income Taxes wiD be those reported In FERG1

pages 262 263 as listed above

APPENDIX B

PRODUCTION
AMOUNT

2

Note B

NoIe C

Note B Allocation factor baSed on wages and salaries ine1ec1ric operations and maintenance

expenses exclUding administratiVe and general expenses See Page A 7

Note C Allocation factorbased on gross plant inservice See Page A 6

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Original SheetNo 64

Effoctlve July I 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 94 of 102



Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Costof 5arvica Formulas
A 11

PRODUCTION RELATED INCOME TAX

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Reference

1 Return on Investment P A 5 L18

2 Interest P A 5 L16x

P A 11 L1 CoI 4

3 Balance fur Equity Eamings L1 L2

4 Combined IncomeTax Factor P A 18 L17

5 Income Tax LA x L3

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Amount
1

Demand

2

APPENDIX a

Energy
3

Original Sheet No 6S

EffCtiv July 1 2006R

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 95 of 102



4
11

IndianaMichigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original SheetNo 66

APPENDIX S
Coatof Servlce Formulas

A18

COMPUTATION OF EFFECTIVE INCOME TAX RATE

TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31

REFERENCE AMOUNT

1 Net Income before Extraordinary
FERC1 P 117 L67

2 Less Allowance for Funls Used During COnstruction AfUDC FERe1 P 117 Ace 419 1

3 Adjusted Net Incorne
Line 1 Line 2

Income TaxeS

4 Federal
FERC 1 P 114 Acct409 1

5 Other
FERC1 P 114 Acct409 1

6 Provision forDeferred lnc laxes
FERC 1 P 114 Acct410 1

7 ProVlslon forDet Inc TllXesCr FERe1 P 114 Acct411 1

8 Investment Tax Cr Adjuslment Net FERC1 P 114 Acct4114

Taxes Applicable to other Income and Deductions

9 lncorne Taxes Federal
FERC1 P 117 Acct409 2

10 Income Taxes other FERC1 P 117 Acct409 2

11 Provision for Deferred Inc Taxes FERC1 P 117 Acct 410 2

12 Provision forDeferred Inc Taxes aedit FERC1 P 117 Acct411 2

13 Investment Tax Credit AdJ Net FERC 1 P 117 Acct411 5

14 To1allncome Taxes
LInes 4thI1l 13

15 Pretax Earnlngs Base
Une3 Une 14

16 Effective Income Tax Rate Line 14 Line 15

17 Combined Tax Factor
Line 16 100 Line 16

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Effective July 1

200n

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 96 of 102



r

Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 67

APPENDIX C

Assign ment of PJM Charges and Credits

forFull Requirements Eledric Service

PJM Operating Agreement

Schedules
Description company customer

1 3 2 1 3 3 1
Spot Market Energy including dayahead and balancing charges credits

x

and reconciliations

1 3 24 3 4 1 5 2
Transmission Congestion including dayahead and balancing charges

x

creditsand reconcluations

1 3 25 3 4 2
Transmission Losses inoluding day ahead and balancing charges credits

x

and reconciliations

1 3 2 2 3 2 2A 3 3 2 3 3 2A Regulation charges credits and reconciliations x

1 3 2 3A 3 3 5 Spinning Reserves charges credits and reconciliations x

1 3 2 3 3 33
Operating Reserves including dayahead balancing and synchronous

x

condensing charges credits and reconciliations

Synchronous Condensing Included under Operating ReselYes above x

1 g 2 36 ReactiVe SelYi charges credits and reconciliations x

1167 Capacity Credit Market charges credits and reconciliations x

1 7 38 FTR Auction charges credits and reconciliations x

1 7 4 Auction Revenue Rights credits x

1 3 2 6 3 3 4 3 5 1 4 3 Emergency Energy charges credits and reconciliations x

1 3 6 Meter Correction
x

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Effective July 1

200A6 I
I

I
I

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 97 of 102



l

Indiana Michigan Power Company
FERC Rate Schedule No 108

Original Sheet No 68

APPENDIX C

Assignment of PJM Charges and Credits

forFull Requirements Electric Service

PJM OATT

Schedules
Description company customer

Scheduling System Control Dispatch Services PJM

1 9
chrge lInd RtIon forQfltPllIrellllrJm n ntlon FTR lIrimnktmtlon mllrklJl WPPOd X

regulationand frequencyresponse administratbn capacITy andresoutoo obligation

lIrJm nlstflflon lInd FERC nnu chll9 OVfHY

1A
Scheduling System Control Dispatch Services x

Tfifnsmlssion ownercharges credits andffCOnciliawns

2
Reactive Supply Voltage Control from Generation Sources charges x

creditsand reconcUiations

3
Regulation and Frequency Response billed under PJM Operating x

Agreement above

4 Energy Imbalance billed under PJM Operating Agreement above x

5
Operating Reserve Spinning Reserve Service billed underPJM

X

Operating Agreement above

6
Operating Reserve Supplemental Reserve Service billed underPJM

x

Operating Agreement above

6A Black Start Service charges and credits x

7
NITS Service charges and credits including Contract Demand Reservation

Service

x

7 RTO Start UpCosts
x

7 8 Firm and Non Firm Point to Point Transmission Service x

13 Expansion Cost Recovery charges and credits x

Attachment R PJM MISO and Intra PJM SECA charges
x

Attachment X PJMIMISO and Intra PJM SECA credits It

ILDSA Other SUpporting FacUities
x

AEP Inadvertent
x

Energy Imbalance
It

Issued by Marsha P Ryan
Indiana Michigan Power Company

Issued on May 26 2006

Effoctiv July 1 2006

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 98 of 102



 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT 
 
This AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) to the Cost-Based Formula Rate Agreement for Full 
Requirements Electric Service, as amended and currently on file as Indiana Michigan Power 
Company FERC Rate Schedule 108 (“Agreement”), is made as of January 31, 2014 by and 
between Indiana Michigan Power Company (“Company”), and the City of South Haven, 
Michigan (“Customer”).  Each of Company and Customer are each individually referred to 
herein as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. WHEREAS, Company and Customer are Parties to that certain Agreement; and 
 
B. WHEREAS, the Parties mutually desire to modify certain terms and conditions of the 

Agreement and authorize Company submit a revised tariff record to the FERC that 
incorporates these modifications, as more fully set forth herein; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as 
follows: 

1. Definitions.  Capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined herein 
shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Agreement. 

2. Amendment Effective Date. The Parties agree to amend the Agreement as set forth in 
Section 3 hereof, which amendments will be effective as designated in the revised Tariff 
filed with FERC (“Effective Date”). 

3. Amendments.  The Parties mutually agree that Company may submit a revised Tariff 
schedule or record to FERC that incorporates the following amendments to the 
Agreement, effective as of the Effective Date, as follows:  

a. Section 2.2(b) Delivery Period.  Section 2.2 (b) of the Agreement is amended by (i) 
deleting in the first sentence “seven (7)” and replacing it with “four (4)” and (ii) 
deleting in the second sentence “2012” and replacing it with “2015”.     

b. Section 15.3(a) Standard of Review.  Section 15.3(a) of the Agreement is amended 
by inserting at the end of the paragraph immediately before the period, the following 
“, provided further, however, Customer agrees not to apply for or to assert or take any 
other action to request a change to the Agreement under Section 206 of the FPA for 
any portion of the Delivery Period prior to June 1, 2015”.   

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 99 of 102



 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 

 

4. General Terms.   

a. Agreement.  Except to the extent expressly modified by this Amendment, all other 
terms and conditions of the Agreement will remain unmodified and continue in full 
force and effect.  Any reference to the Agreement from and after the Effective Date 
will be deemed to refer to the Agreement as amended hereby.   

b. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each 
of which will be an original and all of which together will constitute one and the same 
agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Company and Customer have duly executed this Amendment as of 
the date first written above. 
 
 

Indiana Michigan Power Company 

 

City of South Haven, Michigan 

By:      
Name:      
Title:      
 
 

By:      
Name: Robert G. Burr 
Title: Mayor 
 
 
 

 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 100 of 102



CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN 
VAN BUREN AND ALLEGAN COUNTIES, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-XX 

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE COST-BASED FORMULA RATE 
AGREEMENT FOR FULL REQUIREMENTS ELECTRIC SERVICE 

BY AND BETWEEN INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER COMPANY 
AND THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN 

 
 Minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of South Haven, Van Buren 
and Allegan Counties, Michigan, held in the City Hall, 539 Phoenix Street, South Haven, 
Michigan 49090 on April 7, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. local time. 
 
 PRESENT:  ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 ABSENT:  _____________________________________________________________ 
 

The following preamble and resolution was offered by Member ________________ and 
supported by Member _________________. 

 
WHEREAS, on May 24, 2006, the City of South Haven entered into an Agreement with Indiana 
Michigan Power Company for Full Requirements Electric Service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Indiana and Michigan Municipal Distributors Association has negotiated a 
proposed Amendment to the Agreement on behalf of the City of South Haven and its other 10 
members; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Indiana Michigan Power Company and the City of South Haven both desire to 
adopt the attached Amendment to the Cost-Based Formula Rate Agreement for Full 
Requirements Electric Service, as amended and currently on file as Indiana Michigan Power 
Company FERC Rate Schedule 108. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of South Haven hereby approves the 
attached Amendment and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Amendment on behalf of the 
City. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect upon passage by the City 
Council. 
 
RECORD OF VOTE: 
 
 Yeas:  _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Nays:  _________________________________________________________________ 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED [ADOPTED] [DEFEATED] 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Robert G. Burr, Mayor 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 101 of 102



 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 
City Council at a meeting held on the 15th day of July, 2013, at which meeting a quorum was 
present, and that this resolution was ordered to take immediate effect.  Public notice of said 
meeting was give pursuant to and in compliance with the Open Meetings Act, Act No. 167 of the 
Public Acts of Michigan 1976 (MCL 15.261 et seq). 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Amanda Morgan, City Clerk 

 
BPU Regular Meeting Agenda 
March 31, 2014 
Page 102 of 102


	March 31, 2014 BPU Agenda
	Agenda pg. 2

	02-21-2014 BPU Special Mtg. Minutes draft
	Minutes pg. 2
	Minutes pg. 3
	Minutes pg. 4
	Minutes pg. 5

	#6. Cost of Energy packet.pdf
	A. 2014 Billings - All Charges
	B. 2013 Billings - All Charges

	#7. Financial Reports packet. pdf
	A. Water Fund CuFt Comparisons
	B. Water Fund Financial Statement
	C. Sewer Fund Financial Statement
	D. Electric Fund KWH Comparisons
	E. Electric Fund Financial Statement

	#9. Unresolved Issues Report
	11. Veterans Blvd Underground packet
	BPU Staff Report - Veterans Blvd Underground Project Bids
	Underground Cable Recommendation Letter
	Padmount Switchgear Recommendation Letter
	Conduit Installation Bid Tab 2014-01
	Bid #2014-01 Bid Tab

	Conduit Installation Recommendation Letter
	Veterans Blvd UG Conduit Bid Tab.pdf
	Bid #2014-01 Bid Tab


	Cable & Equipment Installation Bid Tab 2014-02
	Bid #2014-02 Bid Tab

	Cable & Equipment Installation Recommendation Letter
	Veterans Blvd UG Electrical Bid Tab.pdf
	Bid #2014-02 Bid Tab



	12. Core City Secondary Upgrades - Ph 1 packet.pdf
	BPU Staff Report - Core City Secondary Upgrades - Phase 1
	Bid #2014-03 Bid Tab
	Core City Secondary Ph 1Bid Recommendation

	13. Indiana-Michigan Power Co Agreement packet
	Staff Report-Amendment of Cost-Based Formula Rate Agreement with Indiana Michigan Power Co
	Cost-Based Formula Rate Agreement
	FERC Rate Schedule 108 City of South Haven Michigan and Indiana Michigan Power Company
	Draft Resolution - Amendment of Cost-Based Formula Rate Agreement




